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March 17, 2006 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Governing Council, and Citizens of the 
City Of Laredo. 
 
We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the 
City of Laredo, Texas for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2005.  
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and 
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City.  To the 
best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material 
aspects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial 
position and results of operations of the various funds of the City.  All disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial 
activities have been included. 
 
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of 
the City of Laredo.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for 
the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report.  
To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of 
the City of Laredo has established a comprehensive internal control framework 
that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or 
misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the 
City of Laredo’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  Because the cost 
of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Laredo’s 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide 
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be 
free from material misstatement.  As management, we assert that, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all 
material respects. 
 
The City of Laredo’s financial statements have been audited by Garza, Martinez 
& Co., P.L.L.C., a firm of licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the 
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the City of Laredo for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, 
are free of material misstatement.  The independent audit involved examining, on 
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a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that 
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of 
Laredo’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 are 
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditor’s report is 
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 
 
The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Laredo was part 
of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special 
needs of federal and state grantor agencies.  The standards governing Single 
Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair 
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s 
internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis 
on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal 
awards.  These reports are available in the Single Audit Section of this report.  
 
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and 
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is 
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The 
City of Laredo’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 
independent auditors. 
 
Profile of the Government 

The City of Laredo incorporated in 1755.  It is located on the north bank of the 
historical Rio Grande River.  Laredo is unique because it is the only City to 
operate international bridges between two Mexican states.  The City presently 
maintains four border crossings, three with Nuevo Laredo, Mexico and one with 
Colombia, Mexico.  Laredo is at the center of the primary trade route.  It is the 
only border city strategically positioned at the convergence of all land 
transportation systems between Canada, the United States and Mexico. The City 
of Laredo is the largest city in the County of Webb; it is one of the fastest growing 
cities in the State of Texas and ninth fastest growing city in the United States as 
per the 2000 Census with a current estimated population of 215,375.  

The City of Laredo is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal 
properties located within its boundaries.  It also is empowered by state statue to 
extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when 
deemed appropriate by the City Council. 
 
The City of Laredo has operated under the council-manager form of government.  
The policy-making and legislative authority are vested to the City Council 
consisting of the mayor and eight Council members.  The governing council is 
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responsible, among other things for passing ordinances, adopting budgets, 
appointing committees, and the hiring of the City Manager.  The City Manager is 
responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for 
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for appointing the 
heads of the various departments.  The council is elected on a non-partisan 
basis.  Council members may serve up to two (2) four (4) year terms.  The mayor 
is elected to serve a four-year term with a limit of two (2) terms.  All council 
members are elected by district.  The mayor is elected at large.  
 
The City of Laredo provides a full range of municipal services including police 
and fire protection, parks, recreational and cultural activities, libraries, recycling 
services, a civic center, public health and social services, municipal housing, 
public improvements, public bus transportation, water and wastewater services, 
sanitation services, four international bridges, an international airport, planning 
and zoning, and general administrative services.  As such, these activities are 
reflected in the financial statements along with the capital project funds, debt 
service fund, internal service funds, and fiduciary funds.  These financial 
statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles for local governments as prescribed by the Government Accounting 
Standards Boards (GASB). 
 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Laredo’s financial 
planning and control.  The City Manager presents a proposed balanced budget to 
the City Council for review though council workshops.  The council is required to 
hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget by no 
later than September 30th, the close of the City of Laredo’s fiscal year.  The 
appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and 
department (e.g. police).  Department Directors may make transfers of 
appropriations within a department through an insufficient appropriation notice 
that is reviewed by the Budget, Finance and City Manager’s Office depending on 
the dollar value.  Transfers of appropriations between funds require the special 
approval of the City Council.  Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this 
report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual 
budget has been adopted.  For the general fund, this comparison is presented as 
part of the basic financial statements for the governmental funds.  
 
For governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual 
budgets, this comparison is presented in the governmental fund subsection of 
this report.  Also included in the governmental fund subsection are project-length 
budget-to-actual comparisons for each governmental fund for which a project-
length budget has been adopted (i.e., the special revenue fund and the capital 
projects fund). 
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood 
when it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment 
within which the City of Laredo operates. 
 
Local economy.  The City of Laredo currently has enjoyed a favorable economic 
environment and local indicators point to continued growth.   The region has a 
varied retail, international trade, manufacturing and transportation base that adds 
to the relative stability of the unemployment rate.  The increase in demand for 
transportation services, trucking and warehousing as well as business services 
and construction is due to the increase in trade between the United States and 
Mexico.  Laredo is the largest inland port in the Country.  As of September 30, 
2005, the unemployment rate significantly decreased as compared to prior year 
from 6.52 percent to 5.0 percent.  There was an increase in residential 
construction by 505 homes; from 1,342 to 1,847 or 37.6 percent as compared to 
prior year and valuations on those homes grew to $198,367,334 an increase of 
57.15 percent over prior year.   On commercial construction, there was a 10.98 
percent increase in from 1,020 to 1,132 buildings with increased valuations of 
$178,001,202 or 18.10 percent as compared to prior year.    
 
The City has three major hospitals with a combined licensed bed capacity of 630 
beds.  All three hospitals are state of the art facilities with ancillary and support 
services.  There is a fourth hospital being built with completion in May with 
approximately 60 beds which will service long-term acute care patients. 
 
In the current year, nationally known companies decided to make their home in 
Laredo and they range from, retail stores such as a second Target and Circuit 
City, hotels such as Embassy Suites, Homewood Suites by Hilton, Residence Inn 
by Marriott, and La Quinta.  There also numerous local and State business 
making their home in Laredo in the areas of banking, restaurants, clothing stores 
and transportation businesses.   Many businesses opening in Laredo have a very 
diverse economy as well as providing value added jobs to our city. 
 
The City is the home to the “Laredo Bucks” of the Central Hockey League and 
the Miss Texas USA Pageant which reside at the Laredo Entertainment Center.  
The Laredo Entertainment Center hosts many family oriented events which 
include indoor football, exhibition basketball games, rodeos, concerts, motor 
cross racing, wrestling, and big name concert performers such as Elton John, 
Shakira and Cher.  
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MAJOR INITIATIVES 
 
F or the Year 2004-2005 
The City Staff, following the directives of the City Council and the City Manager, 
have addressed and completed a large number of projects during the year.  
These projects reflect the City’s commitment to building a better Laredo and 
provide its citizen with a better quality of life.  
 
• Parks and recreation improvement projects were completed during the fiscal 

year in the amount of $1,120,260.  The projects include a Community Center, 
Santa Rita Park and Zacate Creek Park through Community Development 
Block Grants.    

 
• Various building, street and sidewalk improvements were completed during 

the fiscal year at a cost of $1,585,560.  The major projects completed were 
Sidewalk projects at a cost of $1,429,709 and a Riverfront project at a cost of 
$247,124 through a Community Development Block Grant. 

 
• The acquisition of seven 35 ft. buses for the Laredo Transit Management, Inc. 

at a cost of $2.2 million.  The equipment will be funded by a grant from the 
Federal Transit Authority, Texas Department of Transportation Grant and 
Transit Sales Tax.   

 
• A major contract for the construction and improvement project known as “El 

Portal” in the amount of $22 million in order to assist with the revitalization of 
the downtown area.  The project consists of site and building demolition, a 
new bridge administration building, pedestrian bridge crossing, park pavilion 
building, outbound inspection station, and a market center building.  Site 
improvements include utility improvements, outdoor lighting, sidewalks, ramp, 
plaza, road improvements and landscape / irrigation improvements.  The 
project is located in the downtown area along the Gateway to Americas 
International Bridge.  The project is expected to be completed during fiscal 
year 2006 and is promised to be an economic catalyst for retail sales and 
tourism. 

 
• A $6.5 million communication system for all City departments through the 

implementation of an 800 MHz trucking communication system. This system 
when fully operational, will achieve interoperability hence, the ability to 
communicate with all levels of law enforcement, federal, state and county.  
The project consists of a $3 million infrastructure improvement funded 
through a Certificate of Obligation in 2005, $1.2 million from the Governor’s 
Office and the difference from various departmental budget line items. 
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• The completion of Cielito Lindo, a Fire Station in South Laredo totaling $1.4 
million and opening of three new Police Workstations totaling $400 thousand 
were activated within the City due to the expansion and growth explosion 
throughout the community. 

 
• For the fiscal year various construction contracts were awarded and are 

expected to be completed in fiscal year 2006.  The projects include the 
following: 

  
o Airport Improvements Projects in the amount of $8,238,731 for taxiway 

improvements 
o Parks and Recreation Improvement Projects in the amount of 

$1,528,667.  Development of a multipurpose soccer fields walking and 
jogging trails playground modules with picnic areas among other 
amenities. 

o Street and sidewalk improvement in the amount of $408,027 
o Water and wastewater line improvements in the amount of $4,053,233 

throughout the City. 
o Wastewater treatment plant improvements in the amount of 

$3,908,946. 
o Water rights acquisition in the amount of $2,339,494 in order to meet 

the demands on the system. 
 
• Drainage improvements projects in the amount of $8.28 million including 

Manadas Creek, Zacate Creek Upper Reaches, Chacon Creek Acquisition 
and others. 

 
F
 

uture Major Initiatives 
Future projects that will be undertaken during the next fiscal year include: 
  
• Development of the Laredo International Airport property where 88 acres of 

land across the street from the terminal on Loop 20 will offer retail shops as 
well as a movie theatre.  

 
• Continuation of extensive park development, where the city addresses the 

quality of life issues.  The projects include East Side Sports Complex, North 
Central Park, Northwest Recreation Center, Father McNaboe Park 
Improvements, El Eden Recreation Center, Slaughter Park, Cigarroa 
Recreation Center Improvements, Dryden Park. 

 
• The Santa Ursula Avenue connector road project with an estimated cost of $5 

million will provide the Citizens of Laredo with better access into the 
downtown area where a down ramp from International Bridge No. 2 connects 
to the International Bridge No. 2. 
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• A Bridge construction project is the widening of Bridge II in the estimated cost 
of $1.5 million. This project is in coordination with US Customs in order to 
provide increased accessibility by eliminating pedestrian walkways and 
converting them into a vehicular lane. 

 
• The City continues to work on extending the water and sewer improvements 

to provide these basic needs to residents of Webb County through a $15.7 
million dollar grant from the Texas Water Development Board, Economic 
Distressed Areas Program, and the Border Environmental Cooperative 
Commission.  Thirty nine percent of the project has been completed.   

 
Cash management policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle during the 
year was invested in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and its agencies and 
instrumentalities and the Local Government Investment pools.  The maturities of 
the investments range from daily to three years with an average day to maturity 
of 252 days.  The average yield on investments was 3.572 percent overall.   
 
Risk management.  In January 1990, the City established a partial self-
insurance plan to provide medical coverage for its employees.  On October 1, 
1996, the City converted its Worker's Compensation Plan to a self-funded plan.  
Claims in excess of the self-insured retention amounts are covered through third 
party limited-coverage insurance policies.  The City has accruals for claims that 
have been incurred but not yet disbursed.  The total net assets as of September 
30, 2005, for the Health & Benefits Fund were in a deficit of $22,927.  The high 
cost of insurance claims as well as various catastrophic cases depleted our fund 
balance.  A transfer from the Solid Waste Fund of $3.1 million dollars was 
approved by Council in order to assist with the majority of the fund deficit.  This 
amount will be reimbursed to the Solid Waste Fund in the future as the Health 
and Benefits Fund regains strength as a result of various measures taking place. 
The total net assets for Risk Management were $1,204,127, an increase of 
$459,672 from the previous year.  
 
Pension and other postemployment benefits. The City of Laredo sponsors a 
non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined single-employer (TMRS) defined 
benefit pension plan for its employees.  Each year, an independent actuary 
engaged by the pension plan calculates the amount of the annual contribution 
that the City of Laredo must make to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will 
be able to fully meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis.  As a 
matter of policy, the City of Laredo fully funds each year’s annual required 
contribution to the pension plan as determined by the actuary.  As a result of the 
City of Laredo’s conservative funding policy, the City of Laredo has partially 
funded 58.31 percent as of December 30, 2004.  The remaining un-funded 
amount is being systematically funded over 25 years as part of the annual 
required contribution calculated by the actuary. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Laredo, Texas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Laredo, Texas, as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City of Laredo, Texas', management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; the provisions of Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and the provisions of the State of 
Texas Uniform Grant and Contract Management Standards (UGCMS). Those 
standards, OMB Circular A-133 and UGCMS, require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Laredo, Texas, as of September 30, 2005, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof 
and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Major 

MEMBER: AMERICAN INSTITUTE OFCERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANEANDTEXASSOClElYOF CERTIFIED PUBUCACCOUNTANE 
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Special Revenue Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards and UGCMS, we have also 
issued our report dated March 17, 2006 on our consideration of the City of 
Laredo, Texas', internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
UGCMS and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the 
results of our audit. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the other required 
supplementary information listed on the table of contents, are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We 
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the 
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information 
and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the City of Laredo, Texas' basic financial 
statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are also 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by OMB Circular A-1 33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- 
Profit Organizations and UGCMS, and is also not a required part of the basic 
financial statements of the City of Laredo, Texas. The combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements as well as the schedule of expenditures of 
federal and state awards has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. The introductory section and schedules listed in the table of contents 
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

March 17,2006 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

This section of the City of Laredo’s annual financial report presents our discussion and 
analysis of the City’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended September 30, 
2005.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of this fiscal year by $556 
million (net assets).  Of this amount, $77 million (unrestricted net assets) may be 
used to meet the Government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.   

• The City’s governmental net assets increased by $31 million while the business-type 
activities net assets increased by $1.4 million resulting in a $32.4 million increase in 
total net assets for the current fiscal year. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s Governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $69 million; an increase of $12 million from prior 
year.  At the City’s discretion, $47 million of these fund balances are unreserved, 
$5.6 million are designated for debt service, and the remaining amount of $41.4 are 
available for spending.  These amounts are reported prior to GASB 34 conversion. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the general fund was $14.3 
million, or 15.05 percent of the total general fund expenditures.   

• The City’s bonded debt has a net increase of $14 million from prior year’s balance of 
$301 million.  During the current fiscal year, the City issued $15.6 million in 
certificate of obligation bonds and $6.4 million in revenue bonds.  The City also 
refunded $24.5 million in General Obligation bonds, $48 million in Revenue Bonds 
and $33.6 million in Sports Venue Sales Tax Bonds.  

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This annual report consists of four parts-management’s discussion and analysis (this section), 
the basic financial statements, required supplemental information, and an option section that 
presents combining statements for non-major Governmental funds and internal service funds.  
The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of 
the City. 
 

 The first two statements are Government-wide financial statements that provide both 
long-term and short-term information about the City’s overall financial status. 

 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts 
of the City Government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the 
Governmental-wide statements. 

 The Governmental funds statements tell how general Government services like public 
safety were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 

 Proprietary fund statements offer short-and long-term financial information about the 
activities the Government operates like a business, such as the Bridge, Transit and 
Water and Sewer funds. 

 Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships as an 
example, the retirement plan for the City’s employees in which the City acts solely as 
a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources above belong.  
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                   Fund Statements  
 Government –Wide 

Statements 
Governmental         
Funds 

Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds 

SCOPE Entire City 
Government 
(except fiduciary 
funds) and the 
City’s component 
units 

The activities of 
the City that are 
not proprietary, 
such as police, fire, 
and parks 

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses: 
Bridge, Water, 
Sewer 

Instances in which 
the City is the 
trustee or agent for 
someone else’s 
resources i.e.: the 
retirement plan for 
City employees 

Required Financial 
Statements 

• Statement of 
net assets 

• Statement of 
activities 

• Balance sheet  
• Statement of 

Revenues and 
Expenditures, 
and changes in 
fund balances 

• Statement of 
net assets 

• Statement of 
Revenues 
expenses, and 
changes in net 
assets 

• Statement of 
Cash Flows 

• Statement of 
fiduciary net 
assets 

• Statement of 
changes in 
fiduciary net 
assets 

Accounting basis and 
measurement focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus 

Modified accrual 
accounting and 
current financial 
resources focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus 

Type of asset/liability 
information 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and 
capital, and short-
term and long-term 

Only assets 
expected to be used 
up and liabilities 
that come due 
during the year or 
soon thereafter; no 
capital assets 
included 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and capital 
and short-term and 
long-term 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
short-term and long-
term the City’s 
funds do not 
currently contain 
capital assets, 
although they can.  

Type of inflow/outflow 
information 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year, 
regardless of when 
cash is received or 
paid. 

Revenues for 
which cash is 
received during or 
soon after the year; 
expenditures when 
goods and services 
have been received 
and payment is due 
during the year or 
soon thereafter 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year; 
regardless of when 
cash is received or 
paid 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year, 
regardless when 
cash is received or 
paid 

 
 
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the 
financial statements and provide more detailed data.  The statements are followed by a 
section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the 
information in the financial statements.  Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this 
annual report are arranged and relate to one another.  In addition these required elements, we 
have included a section with combining statements that provide details about our non-major 
Governmental funds and internal service funds, each of which are added together and 
presented in single columns in the basic financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 4



Figure A-1 
 

Required Components of the  
City of Laredo’s Basic Financial Report 

Management's Basic Required
Discussion Financial Supplemental

And Statements Information
Analysis

Government- Fund Notes 
Wide Financial To the

Financial Summaries Financial
Statements Statements

Summary Detail
 
 
Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the 
portion of the City Government they cover and the types of information they contain.  The 
remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the 
structure and contents of each of the financial statements. 
 
Government-wide Statements 
 
The Government-wide statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the City of Laredo’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  
 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net assets.  Overtime, increases and decreases in 
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s financial health or position. 

• Increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are indicators of whether its financial 
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

• To assess the overall health of the City consideration to non-financial factors such as 
changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s roads. 

 
The Government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three activities: 
 

• Government activities-Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as the 
police, fire, parks, public works, health, library departments, and general 
administration.  Sales taxes and property taxes, charges for services, and the state and 
federal grants finance most of these activities.   
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• Business-type activities – The City charges fees to customers to help it cover its cost 
of certain services it provides.  The City’s Municipal Court operations and a portion 
of the Bridge revenues are included here. 

• Discretely Presented Component units – The City includes five other entities in its 
report.  These entities are: Laredo Municipal Housing Corp., Laredo Municipal 
Transit System, Laredo Convention and Visitors’ Bureau, Laredo Firefighters’ 
Retirement System, and the Laredo Water Corporation.  Although legally separate, 
these “component units” are important because the City is financially accountable for 
them. 

 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most 
significant funds – not the City as a whole.  Funds are grouping or related accounts that the 
City uses to keep track of the specific sources of funding and spending for particular 
purposes. 
 

• Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants. 
• The City Council has established other funds to account for particular purposes or 

projects and or to show that it is properly using certain revenue sources. 
 
The City has three kinds of funds: 

• Governmental funds – Most of the City’s basic services are included in Governmental 
funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be 
converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are 
available for spending.  Consequently, the Governmental funds statements provide a 
detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.  
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the 
Government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the 
Governmental funds statements, or on the subsequent page, that explains the 
relationship (or differences) between them. 

• Proprietary funds – Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally 
reported in proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds, like the Government-wide 
statements, provide both long- and short-term financial information. 

• Fiduciary funds – The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employee’s pension 
plans.  It is also responsible for other assets that – because of a trust arrangement can 
be used only for the trust beneficiaries.  The city is responsible for ensuring that the 
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.  All of the City’s 
fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a 
statement of changes in fiduciary net assets.  We exclude these activities from the 
City’s Government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets 
to finance operations. 

 
Notes to the financial statements.  The Notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the Government-wide and fund 
financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements follow the basic financial 
statements. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
    
Net Assets.  The City’s combined net assets totaled $556 million as of September 30, 2005.  
Analyzing the net assets and net expenses of the governmental and business-type activities 
separately, the business type activities net assets are $280 million and the government type 
activities are $277 million.  This analysis focuses on the net assets (Table A-1) and changes 
in general revenues (Table A-2) and significant expenses of the City’s governmental and 
business-type activities. 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
building, equipment, improvements, construction in progress and infrastructure), less any 
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The City uses these capital assets to 
provide service to citizens; consequently these assets are not available for future spending.  
Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
Table A-1                                             City of Laredo’s Net Assets 

September 30, 2004 and 2005 
 

 
 
 

                   Governmental                             Business-Type 
                      Activities                           Activities                          Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Current and other assets 117,091,934$     98,540,699$     127,142,082$   117,539,019$   244,234,016$    216,079,718$    
Capital assets 373,348,998       373,181,358     294,136,829     288,282,005     667,485,827      661,463,363      
  Total assets 490,440,932       471,722,057     421,278,911     405,821,024     911,719,843      877,543,081      

Current liabilities 36,567,851         35,665,547       18,715,168       20,145,764       55,283,019        55,811,311        
Long-term liabilities 177,309,869       190,514,204     122,826,513     107,380,862     300,136,382      297,895,066      
  Total liabilities 213,877,720       226,179,751     141,541,681     127,526,626     355,419,401      353,706,377      

Net Assets:
  Invested in capital assets,
     net of related debt 198,694,918       187,385,351     234,602,168     225,414,099     433,297,086      412,799,450      
  Restricted 34,889,245         20,473,785       11,147,151       8,618,508         46,036,396        29,092,293        
  Unrestricted 42,979,049         37,683,170       33,987,911       44,261,791       76,966,960        81,944,961        
      Total net assets 276,563,212$     245,542,306$   279,737,230$   278,294,398$   556,300,442$    523,836,704$    

 
 

 
An additional portion of the City’s net assets (46,036,396 or 8.27%) represents resources that 
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The City of Laredo has 
sufficient funds to meet requirements for cash outlays in the next fiscal year and has the 
financial capacity to meet its long-term obligations in the years to come.  The City’s policy 
as been to make reasonable and continuous efforts to fund all long-term liabilities. h
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Analysis of the City’s Operations 
 
The following table provides a summary of the City’s operations for the year ended 
September 30, 2005.  Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $31 million, 
while Business-Type activities increased by $1.4 million, overall the City’s Net Assets 
increased by $32.4 million.   The City’s total revenues increased by 4.5 percent to $285 
million in Fiscal Year 2005 (See Table A-2).  The largest revenue category was charges for 
services, which is composed for the most part of Administrative Fees from all departments.      
 
Total operating cost of all programs increased by $8.5 million from prior year to $267 
million. The areas of largest growth were in the areas of public works and cultural and 
recreational.   However, the most significant governmental expense for the City was in 
providing public safety, which incurred $77 million.  These expenses were offset by revenues 
collected by a variety of sources such as property taxes and fines and forfeitures.  The most 
significant portion of the police activity is the cost of personnel, which is approximately $ 29 
million and the fire department with $ 25.6 million (both areas including benefits).  Expenses 
related to parks and recreation activities increased $5 million due to increased expenses for 
ark field services, recreation centers programs and related maintenance. p

   
Table A-2 

 
 

City of Laredo’s Changes in Net Assets 
September 30, 2004 and 2005 

    
                      Governmental                             Business-Type 
                         Activities                           Activities                          Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Revenues:
  Program revenues:
    Charges for services 52,401,380$       47,470,421$     92,223,680$     83,719,720$     144,625,060$    131,190,141$    
    Operating grants and -                    
       contributions 14,751,179         13,072,709       7,244,365         12,514,706       21,995,544        25,587,415        
    Capital grants and
       contributions 14,271,496         13,094,915       7,463,200         13,011,433       21,734,696        26,106,348        
General revenues:
  Sales tax 26,628,764         24,553,316       5,026,869         4,690,014         31,655,633        29,243,330        
  Property taxes 45,019,642         41,518,421       -                   -                    45,019,642        41,518,421        
  Other taxes 9,195,500           8,842,072         9,195,500         8,842,072         
Grants and contributions
  not restricted 4,497,007           5,027,736         4,497,007         5,027,736         
Other 6,245,582           5,244,887         12,500              (103,221)           6,258,082         5,141,666         
      Total revenue 173,010,550$     158,824,477$   111,970,614$   113,832,652$   284,981,164$    272,657,129$    
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                        Governmental                            Business-Type 
                           Activities                           Activities                          Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Expenses:
  General Government 16,356,901$       32,457,409$     16,356,901$      32,457,409$      
  Public Safety 76,682,946         73,213,859       76,682,946        73,213,859        
  Public Works 27,601,104         18,914,550       27,601,104        18,914,550        
  Health & Welfare 16,076,928         16,146,114       16,076,928        16,146,114        
  Culture & Recreation 19,304,006         14,283,487       19,304,006        14,283,487        
  Air Transportation 6,827,442           7,476,744         6,827,442         7,476,744         
  Interest & Other long - -                    -                    
    term debt 12,003,612         9,583,425         12,003,612        9,583,425         
  Bridge System 34,643,592       33,328,290       34,643,592        33,328,290        
  Solid Waste 14,685,053       12,620,242       14,685,053        12,620,242        
  Water System 16,888,416       15,729,159       16,888,416        15,729,159        
  Sewer System 10,903,372       10,840,161       10,903,372        10,840,161        
  Other Business -Types 15,428,595       14,304,763       15,428,595        14,304,763        
    Total expenses 174,852,939       172,075,588     92,549,028       86,822,615       267,401,967      258,898,203      
Inc (dec) in net assets
    before transfers (1,842,389)         (13,251,111)      19,210,853       27,010,037       17,368,464        13,758,926        
Transfers 17,978,754         11,253,312       (17,978,754)      (11,253,312)      -                    -                    
Incr (Dec) in net assets 16,136,365         (1,997,799)        1,232,099         15,756,725       17,368,464        13,758,926        
Net assets, beginning 245,542,306       262,790,740     278,294,398     262,537,673     523,836,704      525,328,413      
Prior Period Adj. 14,884,541         (15,250,635)      14,884,541        (15,250,635)      
Net assets, ending 276,563,212$     245,542,306$   279,526,497$   278,294,398$   556,089,709$    523,836,704$    
   

 
Graph 1 
 

-

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

General Govt. Public Safety Public Works Health and
Welfare

Culture &
Recreation

Air
Transportation

Interest on
debt

Revenues
Expenses

   Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

 
 

Graph 1 represents the cost of each of the City’s 7 largest programs as well as each of the 
programs revenue.  Net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and 
intergovernmental aid) is also reflected for each program.  The net cost is the financial 
burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of these functions. 
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• The cost of all Governmental activities this year was $175 million. 
• The amount that our citizens paid for these activities through City taxes and  revenues 

such as interest earnings, franchise fees, and unrestricted grants was                          
$109.6 million  

• General Government (support services) comprised approximately 9.4% of total 
expenses in Fiscal Year 2005; a decrease of $16 million from prior year.  The 
decrease was largely due to $2.9 in compensated absences, $1.7 million in loss on 
sale or exchange of assets, and $12 million contribution on bond proceeds.  These 
items were one -time expenditures in prior year.    

• Expenses for Public Safety increased by $3.5 million from prior year.  This increase 
was due to increased personnel in Fire and Police totaling $3.3 million, $500 
thousand in motor fuel for the Police Department and a Fire Department Homeland 
Security Grant of $303 thousand.  

• 44% of all Governmental Activities expenses were from public safety, 16% were 
from Public Works, and 11% went for Cultural & Recreational (see Graph 3). 

• Expenses for the Cultural & Recreational activities increased by $5 million from prior 
year.  The $5 million increase was due to $3.9 million land purchase for the Sport and 
Community Venue Fund, $466 thousand for additional park maintenance, $211 
thousand for additional library operations, and $269 thousand for additional 
recreation center expenses. 

• Business Type Activities transferred to Governmental Activities $18 million.  
• 27% of all Governmental Activities revenue came from charges for services, 24% 

from property taxes and 14% from sales taxes (see Graph 2). 
 
 
Graph 2 
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Graph 3 
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Business-type Activities 
 
Revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $107 million for the fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2005, a decrease of $2.3 million from prior year.  There was an overall 
increase in Charges for Services of $8.5 million where the larger contributors to this increase 
were the Bridge System by $3.7 million and Water Systems by $2.8 million However, a 
$10.8 million decrease of capital and operating grants / contributions generated the $2.3 
million net decrease in business-type revenues as compared to prior year.  This decrease of 
$10.8 million is largely due to contributions in the Transit and Utilities Systems in prior year.  
 
 Expenses for the City’s business-type activities were $92 million for the year, a $5.7 million 
increase from prior year.  (Refer to Table A-2).  The areas where these increases occurred are 
as follows: 

• $1.3 million Bridge System; operational increases of $779 thousand and $521 
thousand in non-operational revenues i.e. interest expense and loss of an advance 
refunding. 

• $2.1 million Solid Waste; $1.4 million in operations for the creek cleaning and 
sanitation crews and $700 thousand for additional construction projects. 

• $1.2 million Water System; Due to de-privatization of the System, a reorganization of  
the department transpired where a fluctuation of increases / deceases of expenses 
occurred as compared to prior year.  The following divisions were re-introduced to 
the budget: i.e. Water Treatment, Billing and Transmission / Distribution. 

• $1.1 million in other business type expenses 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the City of Laredo uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Laredo is to provide information on near term 
inflows (current resources) outflows, and balances of available resources.  Such information 
is useful in assessing the City of Laredo’s financial requirements.  In particular, unreserved 
fund balances may serve as a useful measure of the Government’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year.  
 
As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$68.8 million, 21.1 percent increase from prior year.  Of the $68.8 million combined fund 
balance, $13.3 million is unreserved, $5.6 million debt service, and $28 million for capital 
projects, and $62 thousand in restricted for endowment fund; the difference is invested in 
capital assets net of related debt. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Laredo.  At the end of the current 
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $12.9 million while total fund 
balance $14.3 million.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to 
compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  
Unreserved fund balance represents 13.5 percent total general fund expenditures, while total 
fund balance represents 15.05 percent of the same amount. 
 
During the current fiscal year, the City’s general fund balance increased by $4.0 million as 
compared to prior year.  Key factors in this growth are as follows: 
 

• As compared to prior year, an increase of $4.2 million in property taxes.  A growth in 
assessed valuations by 12% from prior year as well as the City’s high collection rate 
of 96.5% has assisted the City in increasing tax revenues without having to increase 
the property tax rate. In addition, an increase of $198 thousand in penalty and interest 
charges over prior year was collected due to aggressive efforts. 

•  An increase of $1.6 million in sales tax due to increased economic growth in the area 
as compared to prior year. 

• An increase of $847 thousand in charges for services to other intergovernmental areas 
as compared to prior year. 

• General Fund Expenditures decreased by $6.7 million from prior year. Where most of 
the departments remained stable with minimal growth with the exception of Police 
Department’s expenditures which increased by $1.5 million, Fire Department with 
growth of $1.9 million and Cultural & Recreational with growth of $1.6 million. 

 
The Debt Service fund has a total fund balance of $5.6 million, all of which is designated for 
the payment of debt.  The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the debt 
service fund was $1.04 million dollars.  Interest earnings increased by $3.8 million as a result 
of premiums and interest earned in various refunding issues. 
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Proprietary funds.  The City of Laredo’s proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information found in the Government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.   
 
Unrestricted net assets of the Business – Type Activities at the end of the year amounted to 
$34 million.  The total decrease in net assets as compared to prior year is $10 million.  The 
largest area of change is in the Solid Waste Fund where a $7 million decrease in net assets 
was attributed to a transfer of $2.5 million to General Fund and a $3.1 million transfer to the 
Health and Benefits Fund in order to subsidize for some of the operations / expenses. Other 
factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of 
the City’s business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Overall, the City aggressively sought to re-gain the equivalent of 15% of operating 
expenditures in fund balance.  Due to 9-11 un-foreseeable expenditures and past economic 
shortfalls, the City had dropped below the targeted rate of 15% in fund balance.   With 
appropriate planning and cautious financial spending, the City’s fund balance is $14,321,521 
or 15.05% of operating expenditures as of September 30, 2005. 
 
Original Budget vs. Final Amended Budget: 
 
Revenues: 

• During the year, the General Fund budget was amended by increasing additional 
appropriations of $1.3 million for Homeland Security State Operating Grant.  

Expenditures: 
• The budget was amended to reflect an additional appropriation of $1 million for 

Homeland Security Grant.  
 
Amended Budget as compared to Actual Expenditures: 
 
Revenues: 

• Significant revenue increase of $2.4 million in revenues as compared to the amended 
budget had various attributes: 

o Increase in sales tax by $777,316. 
o Increase in property taxes by $894,807 and $177,752 for penalties related to 

taxes. 
o Increase in the license and permits by $349,863; largely in the electricity area. 
o Increase in the interest earned by $354,866.  

 
Expenses: 

• Police Department personnel expenditures exceeded by $283,198 as compared to 
budget. 

• Police Department Motor fuel expenditures exceeded budget by $347,497 as 
compared to budget. 

• Fire Department personnel expenditures exceeded by $1,009,386 as compared to 
budget; their largest attributor was overtime by $523,919. 

• Unexpected emergency expenses due to Hurricane Rita of $100,212; the City has 
requested reimbursement from FEMA. 

• All other departments of General Fund played a pro-active role in limiting 
expenditures and ensuring that the City not over extended its appropriations.  
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
The City of Laredo investment in capital assets for its Governmental and Business-Type 
activities as of September 30, 2005 is $663 million (net of accumulated depreciation). The 
total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $3.9 
million net increase over prior year.  Additions for the year totaled $6.4 million and total 
deletions and transfers totaled $2.5 million. (Table A-3) Additional information about the 
City’s Capital Assets is presented in Note 8 to the financial statements. 

 
Table A-3 

City of Laredo 
(net of depreciation) 

 
                      Governmental                            Business-Type 
                         Activities                           Activities                          Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Land 45,405,076$       39,729,697$     28,256,904$     27,856,636$     73,661,980$      67,586,333$      
Buildings 102,447,815       104,650,074     40,340,435       41,577,888       142,788,250      146,227,962      
Machinery & Equipment 16,294,688         15,907,093       23,554,642       26,759,150       39,849,330        42,666,243        
Water Rights 0 0 14,756,178       14,706,178       14,756,178        14,706,178        
Infrastructure 199,489,427       206,890,730     156,997,009     159,335,861     356,486,436      366,226,591      
Construction in Progress 7,958,619           5,397,160         27,672,393       16,450,641       35,631,012        21,847,801        

Total 371,595,625$     372,574,754$   291,577,561$   286,686,354$   663,173,186$    659,261,108$    

 
Major capital asset events for during the current fiscal year included the following: 
  
Governmental 

• Land Acquisition related to the Laredo Entertainment Sports Venue $4.0 million which 
will be used as a future multi-entertainment area with related parking improvements. 

• Land Purchase for Noise Abatement project totaling $1.2 million. 
• Park improvements of over $730 thousand. 

Proprietary 
• Land acquisition for a connector road on Santa Ursula Street which will be used to 

connect International Bridge No. 4 to International Bridge No. 1.  The Land cost was 
$400 thousand; however the construction project is estimated at $5 million. 

• Construction in progress for $7.3 million of a $22 million project on renovations and 
improvements to International Bridge No. 1- El Portal. 

 
The Governmental activities consists of improvements to and / or construction of the City’s 
streets, parks and recreational facilities, police substations, fire protection facility, and airport 
improvements.  Contractual Obligation bonds and grant awards are the primary financing 
mechanism for these capital improvements. 
 
The Business Type activities consist of improvements to and/or construction of water and 
wastewater systems and international bridge improvements.  These projects are primarily funded 
by the transfer of enterprise revenues and the issuance of debt i.e.: Revenue Bonds. 
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Long-term Debt 
 

The C
gener
rating
Stand  
Mood
Fitch

At year-end, the City had $300 million in outstanding bonds and other long term debt; an 
increase of $14.3 million over last year (See Table A-4).  More detailed information about 
the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 11 to the 
financial statements.   
 
New debt resulted mainly from a $15.6 million Combination Tax 
and Revenue Certificate of Obligation Series 2005, a $6.4 million 
Waterworks & Sewer Systems Revenue Bond, $23.8 million 
International Toll Bridge System Revenue Improvement and 
Refunding Bonds, and $24.5 million General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds Series 2005.   The issuance of long term debt 
was to finance various projects including various drainage projects, a rad
system, various park improvements, water transmission lines, El Portal–Bri
various Bridge improvements and various machinery / equipment along 
various issues.   
 

 
Table A-4 

City of Laredo’s Outstanding Debt 
 
 

                      Governmental                            Business-Type 
                         Activities                           Activities            

2005 2004 2005 2004
General obligation bonds 80,040,000$       67,120,000$     -$                     -$                      $    
Certificates of obligation 58,930,000         71,610,000       -                       -                              
Revenue bonds 36,205,000         37,735,000       91,703,768       66,320,273       1      
Capital lease obligations 1,029,869           760,642            -                   -                          
Compensated Absences -                     -                    653,491            584,513                  
Landfill Closure & Post -                     -                    6,869,894         6,215,053               
Notes payable 1,105,000           1,190,000         23,599,360       34,261,023             

Total 177,309,869$     178,415,642$   122,826,513$   107,380,862$   3$    
 

 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
  

The City Council considered many factors when setting the fiscal y
General Fund revenues for FY 05-06 are proposed to be $110,395,227
over prior year actual revenues and expenses are projected to be $11
12.8 percent increase over prior year actual expenditures.  This g
additional demands on the City to enhance services provided to the g
The City’s unemployment rate dropped to 5.0 percent as of Sep
compared to prior year’s 6.5 percent.  This average places it slightl
average of 5.53 percent.   Building permit revenues, sales tax revenu
revenues are areas which we use to measure the local economy.  These
growth and are good indicators of a stronger economy. 
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              Total
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 The total 2005-2006 consolidated budget appropriation is $386 million.  This represents 
an increase of $41 million or 11.9 percent over the 2004-2005 Budget.  The property tax 
rate for 2006 is .6370 per $100 valuation; the rate remains the same as prior year.  
Assessed valuations for FY 05-06 were $7.4 billion which include $299 million of new 
improvements, $653 million or 9.6% with an estimated levy of $47.3 million. Of the 
.6370 tax rate, 80 percent or .512184 cents are utilized for General Fund activities, the 
remaining 20 percent or .124816 cents are used for Debt Service.  The General Fund’s 
portion of property tax revenue for FY 2006 is projected to be $37 million up $4 million 
compared to last year.  Sales tax revenues for the General Fund for fiscal year 2006 are 
budgeted to be $22.7 million, an increase of $1.5 million as compared prior year’s actual 
numbers.   
 
A 2.5 percent cost of living increase was budgeted for all of the City of Laredo’s 
employees for FY 2005-06, with the exception of Fire & Police Safety in which a 
contract negotiated amount is applied.  In addition to the cost of living increase, 
employees are evaluated annually where an average of 3 percent merit increase is 
budgeted.  Due to increasing healthcare costs, the City increased it’s premiums by 10 
percent for family plans; individual coverage is paid at 100 percent by the City. 
 
The City of Laredo will continue to work on various projects such as the revitalization of 
our downtown, a riverfront development with the construction of El Portal, the creation 
of new park spaces, and a beautification project among other projects.  These significant 
investments will help assure future fiscal stability for the City and its citizens. 
 
 

Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and 
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s 
accountability for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to 
the Office of the Finance Director, 1110 Houston Street, City of Laredo, Texas, 78042. 
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CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 

LAREDO 
FIREFIGHTERS 
RETIREMENT 

SYSTEM 
PENSION AGENCY 

TRUST FUND FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Equity in lnvestment Pool 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Investments, at Fair Market Value 
lnvestment wi th  Fiscal Agent, at  Fair Market Value: 

Money Market Funds 
Domestic Corporate Bonds 
Domestic Stocks 
Foreign Money Market Funds 

Accounts Receivable (Note 7) 
Notes Receivable (Note 7) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 
Due To Other Funds 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

Held In Trust for Pension Benefits, Plan Participants, 
and Other Purposes 

The notes to  the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 

LAREDO 
FIREFIGHTERS 
RETIREMENT 

SYSTEM 
PENSION 

TRUST FUND 

ADDITIONS: 

Contributions: 
Employer contributions 
Plan members 
Other contributions 

Total Contributions 

lnvestment Earnings: 
Interest earnings and dividends 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair 

value of investments 
Gains (Loss) on sale of investment 

Total investment earnings 
Less: investment expense 

Net lnvestment Earnings 

TOTAL ADDITIONS 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Benefits 
Administrative Expenses 

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning 42,551,390 

NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 50,495,246 

The notes t o  the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
September 30, 2005 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial 

Statements 

Fund Deficits 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Receivables 

Restricted Assets for Enterprise Fund Types 

Capital Assets 

Retirement Plans 

Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits 

General Long-Term Obligations 

Proprietary Funds Long-Term Obligations 

lnterfund Receivable and Payables 

lnterfund Transfers 

Debt Service Requirements 

Construction and Improvement Commitments 

Fund Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations 

Risk Management 

Contingencies 

Prior Period Adjustment 

Donor Restricted Endowments 

Budget Basis Reporting 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 

The accounting methods and procedures adopted by  the City o f  Laredo, Texas 
conform to  general accepted accounting principles as applied t o  governmental 
entities. The following notes to  the financial statements are an integral part of the 
City's Basic Financial Statements. 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Laredo, Texas (the City) is a municipal corporation incorporated under 
Article XI, Section 5 of  the Constitution of the State of  Texas (Home Rule 
Amendment). The City operates under a Council-Manager form of  government and 
provides a full range of municipal services as authorized by i ts charter. The 
services include public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, sanitation, 
health and social services, culture and recreation, public improvements, planning 
and zoning, and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and 
operates certain major activities including an airport, a transit system, water and 
sewer utility system, a landfill and a bridge system. 

The City has defined its reporting entity in accordance wi th  GASB 14, "The 
Financial Reporting Entity". The component units discussed below are included in 
the City's reporting entity because at least one of the following criteria are 
satisfied: the elected officials of the City are financially accountable for the entity, 
or the nature and significance of the relationship between the entity and the City 
are such that t o  exclude the entity from the reporting entity would render the 
financial statements misleading or incomplete. In conformity w i th  generally 
accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the component units 
have been included in the financial reporting entity as blended components. 

The City Council is the governing board for Laredo Municipal Housing Corporation, 
Laredo Convention and Visitors' Bureau, Laredo Transit Management, lnc, and the 
Laredo Water Corporation. These entities are bound by  the City's legal requirements 
and the City Council approves the budget, major contracts, surplus dispositions, 
and any fees or charges. Additionally, the City is legally responsible for debt and 
public service rendered within the City's boundaries. 

Laredo Municipal Housing Corporation The Laredo Municipal Housing Corporation 
(LMHC) was established in 1976 to  acquire 74 duplexes from the Federal 
Government in an effort t o  alleviate the existing housing shortage and provide 
affordable rental housing t o  the citizens of Laredo. These units are known as the 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Jose A. Flores Apartments. In 1986 the LMHC had 64 additional rental units 
constructed, known as the Tomas Flores Apartments. The 21 1 rental properties ( 8 2  
two-bedroom, 9 9  three-bedroom and 3 0  four-bedroom) must be maintained in a 
safe and habitable condition. In addition to  the rental units, one unit is being used 
as the Laredo Municipal Housing Corporation office. The Corporation provides the 
necessary materials and labor required for the repairs of each rental unit. 
Beautification efforts are also rendered wi th  consistent grass and tree trimming and 
exterior painting of the duplexes. Staff also provides a physical inspection of rental 
units and implements a preventive maintenance program to  curtail deterioration o f  
the units. The Laredo Municipal Housing Corporation operations are reported as an 
enterprise fund. 

In 1999, LMHC finalized the construction of 5 0  3-bedroom houses, which were 
known as the Lease-Purchase Program. This program allowed qualified families to 
purchase the home, after three years of leasing it from LMHC at or near cost. As  
of 2003, this program came to an end wi th  all tenants assuming mortgages 

Laredo Transit Management, Inc. Under the authority o f  Revised Texas Civil 
Statues, Article 118(z) on  September 8, 1987, created Laredo Municipal Transit 
System, The Laredo Municipal Transit System and "Mass Transit Board". The 
Laredo Transit Management, Inc. reports t o  the Mass Transit Board. L.M.T.S. is  
commonly referred t o  as El Metro. 

The primary function and purpose of Laredo Transit Management, Inc. is to  operate, 
maintain, design, and construct a safe, reliable, cost effective and efficient public 
transportation system that will meet the changing needs of our community, while 
complying w i th  applicable state and federal mandates, including the Texas Clean 
Air Act and the Americans wi th  Disabilities Act. 

Laredo Transit Management, Inc. provides both a fixed-route and a demand 
response para-transit program (El Lift). Currently, the fixed-route system is  
comprised of 2 2  routes. The fixed route system has a total of 3 4  buses during a 
regular workday and Saturday peak period. The Laredo Transit Management, Inc. 
bus fleet is currently comprised of 4 7  buses, and 2 trolleys. Thirty-one buses 
operate using compressed natural gas. The El Lift program operates a total of 1 8  
para-transit vans. Fourteen are utilized for a regular workday. 

Laredo Convention and Visitors' Bureau The Laredo Convention and Visitors' 
Bureau was established in April 1993 to  engage in visitor promotion and to  solicit 
and service conventions and other related group businesses generating overnight 
stays in the City, thereby enhancing and developing the economy of the city. In 
2003, Laredo Convention and Visitor's Bureau contracted the Miss Texas Pageant 
to  be performed in Laredo for the next 5 years. Laredo Convention and Visitors' 
Bureau operations are reported as special revenue funds. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System The Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System 
was created under the authority of Article 6243e - Texas Local Firefighters' 
Retirement Ac t  enacted by the Legislature of the State of Texas. The act 
established the membership, benefits, credits and administration of certain 
retirement systems for volunteer or paid firefighters. The Laredo Firefighters' 
Retirement System administers the retirement system for the City of Laredo 
Firefighters employees and is included in the financial statements of the City as a 
component unit. 

Laredo Water Corporation The Laredo Water Corporation was created under the 
Texas Transportation Code 431 .I01 with the approval of the Laredo City Council. 
The corporation was organized for the purpose of acquiring and providing water for 
the use and benefit of the City including, without limitation, contracting for water 
use rights, constructing appropriate water storage, retention, distribution, and 
transportation facilities, and arranging and providing for the payment and financing 
of all of the foregoing, in the fulfillment of its public proposes and for carrying out 
its duties to  provide such water as may be approved by the City f rom time to  time. 
The Laredo Water Corporation is reported as an enterprise fund. 

Complete financial statements of the component units can be obtained from the 
City of Laredo, Financial Services Department offices: 

City of Laredo 
Financial Services Department 
P. 0. Box 579 
Laredo, TX 78042-0579 

B. Basis of  Accounting 

The accounting and reporting policies of the City as reflected in the accompanying 
basic financial statements conform to  generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) for local governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The 
following represent the more significant accounting policies and practices of the 
Citv. 

Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements report information on all o f  the non- 
fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. The effect 
of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. 

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business activities. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Business-type activities rely t o  an extent on fees and charges for support. The 
primary government is reported separately for certain legally separate component 
units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

Program Revenues and Direct Expenses - The Statement of Activities demonstrates 
the direct expenses o f  a given function or segments offset by  program revenues. A 
direct expense is specifically associated wi th  a service, program, or department and 
is clearly identifiable t o  a particular function. In the Statement of Activities, certain 
indirect expenses are reported in  the program expenses. Program revenue derives 
directly from the program itself or from parties outside the reporting government's 
taxpayers or citizenry. Program revenues include charges t o  customers or applicants 
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided 
by a given City function or segment. Program revenues also include grants and 
contributions that are limited t o  meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Taxes and other items not included among program revenue are 
reported as general revenue. 

Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the  City are organized on the basis of funds, each o f  which i s  
considered to  be a separate accounting entity. The operations o f  each fund are 
accounted for w i th  a separate set of self-balancing accounts that  comprise i ts  
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as 
appropriate. Government resources are allocated t o  and accounted for in  individual 
funds based upon the  purposes for which they are t o  be spent and the  means b y  
which spending activities are controlled. The City maintains the  following fund 
types: 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the 
City are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the City's expendable 
financial resources and the  related current liabilities (except those, if any, which 
should be accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through 
governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of financial 
position and changes in  financial position, rather than upon net income 
determination. The City maintains the following governmental fund types: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund o f  the City. It i s  
used to  account for all financial resources except those required t o  be accounted 
for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to  account for  the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts, or major capital 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

projects) that are legally restricted or designated for specific functions and 
activities. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to  account for the accumulation 
of resources for the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and 
related costs. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used t o  account for financial 
resources to  be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities 
(other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are used to  account for the City's ongoing operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar t o  private business enterprises - where 
the determination of net income, financial position, and cash f lows are necessary or 
useful for sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities 
can be provided either t o  outside parties (enterprise funds) or t o  other departments 
or agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds). 

The City has adopted the following policy regarding proprietary activities under 
GASB Statement Number 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary 
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to  account for operations that (I) are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to  private business enterprises where the 
intent of the City Council is that the cost (expenses including depreciation) o f  
providing goods or services to  the general public on a continuing basis be financed 
or recovered primarily through user charges or (2) where the City Council has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and net 
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. 

The City wil l  apply all GASB pronouncements and all FASB Statements and 
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions and Accounting 
Research Bulletins (ARB) issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they 
conflict wi th  or contradict GASB pronouncements and apply all FASB Statements 
and Interpretations, issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict 
wi th  or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used t o  account for the financing 
of goods or services provided by one City department or agency t o  other City 
departments or agencies or to  other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement 
basis. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used t o  account for assets held b y  the City in 
a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governmental units, and other funds. 

Pension Trust Fund - This fund is accounted for in the same manner as proprietary 
funds w i th  the measurement focus on determination of net  income and capital 
maintenance. The City is custodian t o  funds contributed into the  fund; funds are 
used toward annuity payments. The City has one pension fund: Firefighters 
Retirement System. 

Agency Funds - The Agency Funds are used t o  account for funds where the City's 
role is purely custodial. Al l  assets reported in an agency fund are offset by a liability 
t o  the party on whose behalf they are held and do not involve measurement o f  
results of operations. Currently, the City has three Agency funds: Annuity Fund, 
Payroll Clearing and Police Health and Benefits. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Economic 
resources measurement focus reports all inflows, outflows, and balances affecting 
or reflecting an entity's net assets. Accrual basis accounting is the method that 
recognizes the financial effect of transactions, events, and inter-fund activities 
when they occur, regardless of the timing of related cash f lows. Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied while the organization 
recognizes grant revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements obligatory have been 
met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized when measurable and available. "Measurable" means that 
the amount of the transaction can be determined, and "available" means collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter t o  be used t o  pay liabilities o f  
the current period. The City considers property tax revenues t o  be available i f  they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures 
are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related fund liability is incurred. An exception to  this general rule is principal and 
interest on general long-term obligations, compensated absences, and claims and 
judgments which are recognized when due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated wi th  the current 
fiscal period are all considered t o  be susceptible t o  accrual and are recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period. Sales taxes collected and held by the state a t  
year-end on behalf o f  the government are also recognized as revenue. All other 
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revenue items are considered to  be measurable and available when they are 
received. 

The City reports the following as major governmental funds: 

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used t o  account for all 
financial resources except those require t o  be accounted for in  another fund. 

Debt Service Fund is used to  account for the accumulation of resources for the  
payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

The City reports the following as major proprietary funds: 

Bridge System Fund is used t o  account for toll proceeds from four international 
bridges and the related operations, maintenance, and debt service. 

Water Works System Fund is used t o  account for the operations, maintenance, and 
debt service f rom three water treatment plants and seventeen booster stations and 
the related revenue received from 55,252 customers. 

Sewer System Fund is used t o  account for the operations, maintenance, and debt 
service o f  the City's five sewage treatment plants and its related revenue received 
from 52,565 customers. 

Solid Waste Fund is used t o  account for operations and maintenance o f  the 
municipal landfill, recycling center and construction o f  a new municipal landfill site. 
The major source of revenues consists of garbage collection fees, landfill fees and 
federal and state mandates. 
Additionally, government-wide reports for proprietary funds include the  following 
fund type: 

Internal Service Funds are used to provide fleet services t o  other funds, provide 
services associated w i th  the City's partially self-funded health benefits program and 
provide services associated wi th  the risk management for all ci ty property including 
workman's compensation, t o  all funds on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

As  a general rule, the  effect o f  inter fund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions t o  this general rule are 
payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the City's water and sewer 
functions and various other functions of government. 

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued after 
November 30, 1989, are followed in both business-type activities and enterprise 
funds fund financial statements t o  the degree that those standards do not conflict 
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wi th  or disagree w i th  the guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board. Governments have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject t o  this same 
limitation. The City has elected t o  follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Amounts reported as program revenue include 1) charges t o  customers or 
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and 
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated funds 
are reported as general revenues. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection wi th  a proprietary fund's principal 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and of the 
government's internal service funds are charges t o  customers for sales and 
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include 
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital 
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non- 
operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for  use, it is the 
government's policy to  use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted 
resources as they are needed. 

C. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City adheres t o  the following procedures in establishing the operating budgets 
reflected in the basic financial statements: 

(1) Sixty (60) days prior t o  the beginning of each fiscal year, the  Ci ty Manager 
submits t o  the City Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning October 
1st. This budget is required t o  include expenditures by office, department, and 
agency and the means of financing them. Proposed short and long range capital 
expenditures and bonded debt requirements must also be included. 

(2) Public hearings are conducted at  which all interested parties may comment 
concerning the proposed budget. 

(3) Council adopts the  budget on or before the last day of the month o f  the fiscal 
year currently ending through passage of an appropriation ordinance and tax levy 
ordinance. If the City Council fails t o  adopt the budget at that  time, the  budget o f  
the previous year is deemed to  be adopted. 
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(4) Annual appropriated budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund, Special 
Revenue Funds, Capital Project Funds, Debt Service Fund, Proprietary Fund Type 
Funds, and certain Trust and Agency Funds including Friends of the Library, 
Canseco Endowment Fund and Police Trust Fund. A comparison o f  budget to 
actual is presented in the Basic Financial Statements for the General Fund, Special 
Revenue Funds. and Debt Service Fund. 

(5) The City Charter identifies various allowable amendments t o  the budget after 
adoption. Supplemental Appropriations are allowed if the City Manager certifies 
that there are, available for  appropriation, revenues in excess of those estimated in 
the budget and Council by  ordinance and after a formal inquiry has established a 
need for the supplemental appropriation. Emergency Appropriations are allowed to 
meet a public emergency affecting life, health, property, or the  public peace of the 
City through an emergency ordinance if there are available un-appropriated 
revenues. Decreases in the amount of appropriations are allowed i f  revenues 
available are insufficient t o  meet the amount appropriated. 

Transfer of Appropriations is allowed. Several supplementary appropriations were 
necessary during the year primarily t o  adjust the total budget for  grants received 
from various federal and state agencies. 

(6) The City Council approval is required in order t o  transfer un-appropriated 
balances from one department, office, or agency t o  another. The City Manager has 
the authority, wi thout City Council approval, t o  transfer appropriation balances from 
an expenditure account t o  another within a department, office, or agency of the 
City. The reported budgetary data has been revised for amendments authorized 
during the year. 

(7) Each appropriation, except those for capital expenditures, shall lapse at  the 
close of the fiscal year t o  the extent it has not been expended or encumbered. 
Certain differences exist between the basis of accounting for  budgetary purposes 
and that used for reporting in accordance wi th  generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

D. Encumbrances 

Encumbrances represent commitments related t o  unperformed (executed) contracts 
for goods or services. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, 
contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in 
order to  reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is used in  the 
governmental funds. 
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Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of  fund 
balances since the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year and, 
accordingly, do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. 

For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at year-end except for that portion 
related to  encumbered amounts. For financial purposes, the original budget also 
includes actual appropriation amounts automatically carried over f rom prior years to 
cover prior-year encumbrances. 

E. Equity in Investment Pool 

Cash balances of all City funds (except for the Laredo Firefighters' Retirement 
System) are pooled and invested. The Equity in lnvestment Pool consists of cash in 
bank accounts, which are pooled and allocated to  all funds. lnvestments purchased 
wi th  pooled cash consisting of lnvestment Pools, U.S. Government obligations, 
U S .  Agency obligations, and Mortgage Backed Securities are recorded a t  fair value 
in accordance wi th  GASB Statement 31 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Certain Investments and for External lnvestment Pools and are classified as 
"Investments" in  the accompanying combined balance sheet. Interest earned on  
investments purchased w i th  pooled cash is allocated monthly to  each participating 
fund based upon the fund's average month equity balance. Funds that incur a 
negative balance in equity in pooled investments are reclassified as Due to  Other 
Funds in the financial statements and are not allocated any interest earnings or  
charged interest expense. 

F. Investments 

The City can legally invest in certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, 
obligations of the U.S. Government and its Agencies or instrumentality and State 
obligations all of which are recorded at fair value in accordance with GASB 
Statement 31 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain lnvestment and for 
External lnvestment Pools. 

G. lnventories 

lnventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in first- 
out method, and the average cost method as appropriate. The costs o f  
governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed 
rather than when purchased. 

H. Restricted Assets 

The International Toll Bridge System, Water System, and Sewer System revenue 
bond indentures require that, during the period the bonds are outstanding, the City 
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must maintain certain separate accounts and funds t o  account for t he  proceeds 
from the issuance of the revenue bonds and the debt service deposits made from 
revenues. These restricted assets can be used only in accordance wi th  the revenue 
bond indenture t o  pay the debt service payments on such bonds. 

I. Property. Plant, Equipment, and lnfrastructure 

Property, plant, and equipment owned by the City are stated a t  historical cost. 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to  operations as incurred, and improvements, 
which extend the  useful l ife of a capital asset, are capitalized. Currently, the City's 
policy has a threshold o f  $5,000 for equipment and $25,000 for infrastructure. 
The straight-line method is used t o  calculate the depreciation for all capital assets 
over the estimated useful life: 

Utility Funds: 

Plant 

Transmission and distribution system 

Other machinery and equipment 

All Other Funds: 

Buildings and improvements 

Machinery and equipment 

Vehicles 

Streets 

Bridges 

Airport runways 

Boat ramps 

Storm Drainage 

Landfill 

50 years 

25-50 years 

1 - 25 years 

45-50 years 

1 - 10 years 

6 years 

15-30 years 

20-35 years 

10 years 

30 years 

50 years 

5 vears 

The City's lnfrastructure acquired prior t o  June 30, 1980, is included. When 
property, plant, and equipment are retired from service or otherwise disposed of, a 
gain or loss on disposal of assets is recognized. 

J. Net Assets 

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net o f  
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances o f  any borrowing 
used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding 
back unspent proceeds. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are 
limitations forced on their use either though enabling legislations adopted by  the 
City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or regulations o f  
other governments 
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K. Long-Term Obligations 

The City has issued combination tax and special revenue (water, sewer, paving 
assessments, hotel-motel, airport revenues, mass transit, parking system, and 
public property finance contractual obligations) certificates o f  obligation, which it 
intends t o  repay from a combination of revenues and property taxes. The City 
identifies the debt service requirements for all general obligation bonds and all 
combination tax and special revenue certificates o f  obligation and reduces the  
property tax levy by surplus revenues (if any) from the  above-mentioned sources. 
GASB Statement 34 eliminates the presentation of the General Long Term Debt 
Account Group, but provides that these records t o  be maintained and incorporates 
the information into the Governmental Column in the government-wide Statement 
of Net Assets. General obligation and all combination tax and special revenue 
certificate of obligation debt is recorded exclusively in the General Long Term Debt 
Account Group, and it is counted towards the legal debt limit of the  City. 

Any proceeds from issuance o f  general obligation and combination certificates o f  
obligation, which are used for construction of governmental capital assets are 
recorded as bond proceeds in the governmental funds. 

Any proceeds from issuance of combination of tax and special revenue certificates 
of obligation bonds which are t o  be used for construction of enterprise fund capital 
assets are recorded as bond proceeds in the General Fund and as contributions to 
the enterprise funds. In the enterprise fund the proceeds are recorded as 
"Contributions". 

Revenue bonds, which have been issued to  fund capital projects of an Enterprise 
Fund and Special Revenue Fund, are to  be repaid from net revenues o f  the 
Enterprise Funds and Sales Venue Sales Tax for the Special Revenue Fund. Such 
debt is recorded in the  Enterprise Funds. 

L. Compensated Absences 

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave hours at varying rates based o n  
the number of years employed. Employees are paid accumulated vacation hours u p  
to  a maximum o f  480 hours upon termination or retirement. Sick leave hours are 
paid up t o  a maximum of 720 hours upon retirement. 

Accumulated vacation leave expected t o  be paid w i th  available financial resources 
is reported as expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that wi l l  pay 
it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are no t  expected to  be 
liquidated wi th  available financial resources are accounted for in the general long- 
term debt account group for internal purposes only. Accumulated vacation leave o f  
enterprise funds are recorded as an expense and liability o f  those funds as the 
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benefits accrue t o  employees. No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating 
rights t o  receive sick pay benefits except as noted above. 

M. Federal and State Grants and Entitlements 

Grants and entitlements may be accounted for within any o f  the three fund types. 
The purpose and requirements o f  each grant or entitlement are carefully analyzed t o  
determine the proper fund type in which t o  record the related transactions. Grants 
and entitlements received for purposes normally financed through a particular fund 
type may be accounted for in that fund type provided that applicable legal 
restrictions can be appropriately satisfied. 

Capital grants restricted for capital acquisitions or construction projects are 
accounted for in the  applicable Capital Project Funds. Revenues received for 
operating or for capital expenditure purposes of Enterprise Funds are recognized in 
the applicable Enterprise Fund. 

In prior years, capital contributions, including capital grants received for capital 
purchases, were recorded as a direct addition to  the contributed capital equity 
account for Proprietary Funds. Beginning in fiscal year 2001, GASB 33 requires 
contributions o f  capital grants to  be recorded as revenue in the  Statement o f  
Revenue, Expense, and Changes for Fund Net Assets for Proprietary Funds. 

N. lnterfund Transactions 
Transactions between funds that would be treated as revenues, expenditures, o r  
expenses if they involved organizations external t o  the governmental unit are 
accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses in the funds involved. 

Non-recurring or non-routine transfers of equity between funds are reported as 
additions to  or deductions from the fund balance of governmental funds. Al l  other 
legally authorized transfers are treated as transfers in the basic financial statements 
and are included in the  results of operations of both governmental and proprietary 
funds. 

0.  Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs 
Expenses related to  the sale of revenue bonds are amortized over the life of the 
issue. 

P. Statement o f  Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include 
cash on hand, equity in the investment pool, and cash w i th  fiscal agent. 
Governmental entities under GASB 9, as amended by  GASB 34, paragraph 105, 
must use the direct method for Cash Flow presentation. 
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The accounting methods and procedures adopted by the City o f  Laredo, Texas 
conform t o  generally accepted accounting principles as applied t o  governmental 
entities. The following notes t o  the financial statements are an integral part of the 
City's Basic Financial Statements. 

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

A. Explanation o f  certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet 
and the government-wide statement of net assets 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance- 
total governmental funds and net assets-governmental activities as reported in the  
government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that  reconciliation 
explains that "long -term liabilities include bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." The details o f  
this $167,737,357 difference are as follows: 

Bonds, notes payable, and capital leases $194,010,620 
Accrued interest 1.289.31 1 
Deferred revenue 123,024,923) 
Compensated absences (2,709,2271 
Elimination of lnterfund activity (1,828,424) 
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental 
funds to arrive at net assets-governmental activities $ 1  67.737.357 

B. Explanation o f  certain differences between governmental fund statement o f  
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide 
statements o f  activities 

An  element of the reconciliation states that "the issuance o f  long-term debt 
provides current financial resources t o  governmental funds, while the  repayment o f  
the principal o f  long-term debt consumes the current financial resources o f  
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. 
Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred 
and amortized in the statement of activities." The details of this $3,095,928 
difference are as follows: 

Debt issued: 
Bond & Capital lease proceeds 
Repayments: 
General obligation bond 
Capital lease 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes In fund 
balances-total governmental funds to arrive at 
changes in ner assets of governmental activities 
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An element of the reconciliation states that for governmental funds, capital outlay 
should be reported as expenditures. In the statement of activities, "the cost of  
these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense." The amount of depreciation expense exceeded capital 
outlays in this fiscal year by $921,953. The details of this are as follows: 

Assets that were purchased and capitalized in the current year $14,299,478 
Current year depreciation (15,221,431) 
Amount by which capital outlays exceed depreciation $(  921,953) 

NOTE 3 - FUND DEFICITS 

The following is a list of the undesignated deficit fund balances in the Special 
Revenue Funds: Block Grants $1,201,791 ; Home Investment $527,852; 
Emergency Shelter $54,383; Noise Abatement $1 1 1,920; Health Fund $221,939; 
International Airport $321,880; 91 1 Emergency Comm. Fund $1 83,997 
Subdivision Trust Funds $5,388; and Capital Projects Funds: Webb County 
Colonias Project $1,077,566, Airport Construction Fund $6,059,332; Parks Capital 
Grants Fund $36,009. The deficit fund balances are equal to or less than the 
Reserve for Encumbrances balance that does not constitute expenditures or 
liabilities. The Reserve for Encumbrances constitutes purchase orders, contracts 
and other commitments entered into during fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. 
The deficits will be recovered through grant cost reimbursements and other 
revenues. 

The Health and Benefits Fund which is an internal service fund had fund deficit of 
$22,927. The deficit will be recovered by the increasing of charges issued to  other 
funds. 

Subdivision Trust Fund's deficit fund balance of $5,388 was due to  a reduction in 
the fair market value. The deficit is expected to be recovered by next fiscal year. 

NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The monetary assets of the City are held in various forms and accounts. These 
assets are described and presented in the basic financial statements in three 
groups. 

One group is described as "Cash and Cash Equivalents". This group is 
characterized as having high liquidity with little market risk and includes cash in 
bank accounts, petty cash and change funds. Another group is disclosed as Equity 
in Investment Pool and consists of cash in bank accounts. The third group of 
monetary assets is presented in the basic financial statements as "Investments". 
Cash balances of all City funds (except for the Laredo Firefighters Retirement 
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System) are pooled and invested. All securities are reported at fair value in order t o  
comply with GASB Statement 31 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for External 
Investment Pools. Investments with a remaining maturity at the time of purchase 
of one year of less are reported at amortized cost. The net decrease in the fair 
value of the securities was $460,422 for the City of Laredo and a net increase of 
$2,434.1 44  for the Laredo Firefighters Retirement System. 

As of September 30, 2005, cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following: 

Petty Cash and Change Fund $ 48,168 
Equity in Investment Pool 239,255 
Cash in Other Bank Accounts 62,100 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 569,362 

$ 91 8,885 

Custodial credit risk - deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk 
event of a bank failure, the Citv's deposits mav not be returned t o  it. 

that in the 
The Citv's 

deposit policy is in compliance with Texas dovernment Code Chapter 2257' - 
"Collateral for Public Funds". All deposits were covered by federal depository 
insurance up to $100,000 and collateralized with eligible securities in amounts of at 
least 102% of the book value of deposits. As of September 30, 2005, the book 
value of all the City's deposits was $91 8,885. Deposits were properly secured at  al 
times during the fiscal year. All collateral securities were held by a third party in 
the City's name and were not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS 

The City, as per the "Public Funds Investment Act" of the State of  Texas, is 
authorized to invest in obligations of the United States or i ts agencies and 
instrumentalities; direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and 
instrumentalities; other obligations which are unconditionally guarantee by the State 
of Texas or United States; obligation of the States, agencies thereof, Counties, 
Cities, and other political subdivisions of any state having been rated as investment 
quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm; Certificates of Deposits of 
state and national banks domiciled in Texas, guaranteed or insured by the Federal 
Depository Insurance or its successor; fully collateralized direct repurchase 
agreements with a defined termination date secured by obligations of the Untied 
Stated or its agencies; Banker's Acceptances that has a stated maturity of 270 
days or less from the date of issuance; Commercial Paper that has a stated 
maturity of 270 days or less from date of issuance and rated not less than A- I  or 
P-I or an equivalent rating; a no-load money market mutual fund that is registered 
with and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, has a dollar- 
weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or fewer and includes in its 
investment objectives the maintenance of a stable net asset valued of $1 for each 
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share; Investment Pools as long as the governing body of the City approved them 
by rule, order ordinance or resolution. The investments of the Pension Trust Fund, 
the Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System are governed by the Texas Local Fire 
Fighters' Retirement Act establishing the System. The act authorizes additional 
investment types which include corporate bonds, common stock and mutual funds. 

The investment and maturities at September 30, 2005, were as follows: 

Investment Maturity in Years 
Non Maturitv 

Fair Value Rated Less Than 1 1-3 
U. S. Agencies $ 72.1 51,249 54.81 5,592 17,335,657 

Mutual Funds 

Equities 

Managea Pools - 126,586,613 126.586L6j.3 
Total nvostrnent~ $ 248.889.867 126,586,613 54.81 5.592 17,335,657 

P -- 

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will 
decrease as a result of a rise in interest rates. The City's investment policy limits 
the maximum maturities exceeding two  years to 25% of the total portfolio. The 
other 75% must, to  the extent possible, be match with projected cash flow 
requirement. As of September 30, 2005, a security of $4,879,688 had a maturity 
greater than 2.7 years. 

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that the government will not be able to recover 
the value of its securities. As of September 30, 2005, the City invested in U. S. 
Agencies and Managed Pools. The Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System as per 
their investment policy is allowed to investment in other types of investments such 
as mutual funds and common stock. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The risk of loss attributed to  the magnitude of a 
government's investment in a single issuer. Of the total City's investments, 7% 
were invested in Federal Farm Credit Bank Notes and 29% in Federal Home Loan 
bank Notes the other 64% were investment in Local Government Investment Pools. 
The City's investment policy limits the total of investment in a single type of  
security to 50% of the total portfolio. Of the Firefighters' Retirement System 
investments, 36% was invested in mutual funds and 64% in equities. 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment security, custodial credit risk is the risk 
that in the event of a failure of the counterparty the City will not be able to recover 
the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party. As of September 30, 2005, the City had no repurchase agreements. 
The City's investment policy dictates that a third party financial institution, 
designated by the City, shall be the holder of the City's investment securities. The 
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Firefighters' Retirement System has also designated a third party selected by the 
system as the safekeeping institution for its securities. 

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES 

The City's property tax is levied each October 1st on the assessed value listed on  
the tax roll as of the prior January 1st for all real and personal property located in 
the City. The City Charter stipulates that taxes shall become due on  October 1st o f  
the year of levy and shall be paid by the following January 31st. All real and 
personal property in the City on January 1st each year will be subject t o  lien from 
that date for taxes due thereon. The adjusted assessed value for the tax roll as o f  
January 1, 2004, upon which the 2004  levy was based, was $6,783,309,499. 

The appraisal of property within the City is the responsibility of the Webb County 
Appraisal District. The Appraisal District is required under the Property Tax Code t o  
assess all property within the Appraisal District on the basis of 1 0 0 %  o f  its market 
value. The value of property within the Appraisal District must be reviewed every 
three years; however, the City may, at its own  expense, require more frequent 
reviews of appraised value. The Webb County Appraisal District has chosen to 
review the value of property every year. Under this legislation, the City continues 
to  set tax rates on property within the City limits. However, if the effective tax 
rate exceeds the rate for the previous year by more than 8% qualified voters of the 
City may petition for an election to  determine whether t o  limit the  tax rate to no 
more than 8% above the effective tax rate of the previous year. 

The City is permitted by Article II, Section 5 of the State of Texas Constitution to 
levy taxes up t o  $2.50 per $100 of  assessed valuation for general governmental 
services; including the payment of principal and interest on general obligation long- 
term debt. Under the 1981 City Charter, the City's power of  taxation is restricted 
to  State statutes. The City Council has considered $1.50 as the maximum tax per 
$100 assessed valuation. City Charter Section 6.13, as amended in November 
1995, limits the total overall outstanding debt t o  1 0 %  of  the total assessed 
valuation of the City. 

The tax rate t o  finance general governmental services including the payment and 
interest on long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 2005 was $.637000 
per $100 of assessed valuation ($.508677 for general government and $ . I28323  
for debt service). Thus, the City has a tax margin of approximately $.863000 per 
$100, and could levy approximately $58,539,961 in additional taxes per year from 
the present assessed valuation of  $6,783,309,499 before the limit is reached. 
Because of limitations imposed by state law, cases in which accumulated taxes 
exceed property value, other problems in tax collection and because of the possible 
uncollectibility o f  certain other accounts receivable, allowances have been provided 
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for uncollectible accounts resulting in only the net collectible amounts being 
reflected in the balance sheet. 

The allowances for uncollectible accounts for taxes and other receivables as o f  
September 30, 2005 are reflected in the following table: 

Other 
Governmental 

General Fund Types Proprietary Fiduciary Total 
Receivables: 

Property Taxes $ 5,479,673 1.01 3,607 6,493.280 
Hotel Motel Taxes 24,801 24.801 
Accounts 6.898.254 3.341.623 8,900,854 2,494 19,143.225 ~ ~ 

Notes 
Paving Assessments 

Gross Receivables 
Less Allowance for 
Uncollectible l3.084.9241 (3,093,6891 (3,326,6111 (9,505,2241 

Net Receivables $ 9,293,003 14,710,665 6,676,633 138,530 30,818.831 -- -- 
NOTE 7 - RESTRICTED ASSETS FOR ENTERPRISE FUND TYPES 

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set 
aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the  balance sheet 
because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. 

The "revenue bond retirement reserve" is used t o  report resources set aside t o  
make up potential future deficiencies in the revenue bond current debt service 
account. The "revenue bond contingency" is used t o  report resources set aside t o  
subsidize potential deficiencies from the enterprise fund's operation that could 
adversely affect debt service payments. The "construction account" is used t o  
report those proceeds of bond issuance that are restricted for use in construction. 
The "water rights" account is used to  report revenue received through water 
availability charges. 

The following table summarizes restricted assets by purpose as of September 30, 2005: 

Solid 
Transit Bridge Waterworks Sewer Waste 
System System System System Management Total 

Revenue Bond 
Reserve S 

Revenue Bond 
Contingency 

Construction 
Account 5.491.597 25.669.51 5 16,036,234 14.200.280 1,123,149 62,520,775 

Water Rights 12,319,595 - 12,319,595 
Total Restricted 

Assets $ 5,491,597 33,461,945 30,342,944 15,567,886 1,123.149 85,987,521 - 
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2005 was as follows: 

A - Governmental Activities: 

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in Progress 
Total Capital Assets, Not Being 
Depreciated 
Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Buildings 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery & Equipment 
Total Assets Being Depreciated 
Less Accumulated Depreciation For: 
Buildings 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery & Equipment 
Total Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, 
Net 
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, 
Net 

Balance as of Balance as of  
September 30, Deletions September 30, 2005 

2004 Additions and Transfers 

B - Business Type Activities: 

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in Progress 
Waterrights 

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Buildings 
lmprovements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery & Equipment 
Total Assets Being Depreciated 

Less Accumulated Depreciation For: 
Buildings 
lmprovements Other Than Buildings 

Machinery & Equipment 
Total Accumulated Depreciation 
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 

Business Type Activities Capital Assets. Net 

Balance as of Deletions Balance as of  
09/30/2004 Additions and Transfers 09/30/2005 
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Depreciation expense was charged t o  functions/program of the primary government 
as follows: 

Government Activities: 
General Government $ 75,439 
Public Health 326,451 
Culture & Recreational 392,771 
Public Works 1 1,697,723 
Public Safety 571,363 
Air Transportation 1,974,446 
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are 

charged t o  the various functions based on their usage of the assets 71,536 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $ 15,109,729 

Business-Type Activities: 
Solid Waste Management 
Bridge System 
Waterworks System 
Sewer System 
Other Enterprise Funds 

Total depreciation expense-business-type activities 

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS 

The City provides benefits for all of i ts  full-time employees (except for firefighters) 
through a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state- 
wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one of 801  administered by  
TMRS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. 

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions t o  the plan, wi th 
interest, and the City-financed monetary credits, w i th  interest. A t  the date the  plan 
began, the City granted monetary credits for services rendered before the plan 
began a theoretical amount equal to  t w o  times what  would have been contributed 
by the employee, w i th  interest, prior t o  establishment o f  the plan. Monetary credits 
for service since the plan began are a percentage (100%. 150%, or 200%) of the 
employee's accumulated contributions. In addition, the City can grant, as often 
as annually, another type of monetary credit referred t o  as an updated service 
credit which is a theoretical amount which, when added t o  the employee's 
accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan 
began, would be the total monetary credits and employee contributions 
accumulated w i th  interest if the current employee contribution rate and City 
matching percent had always been in existence and i f  the employee's salary had 
always been the average of his salary in the last three years that  are one year 
before the effective date. A t  retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum o f  
the employee's accumulated contributions wi th  interest and the employer-financed 
monetary credits w i th  interest were used t o  purchase an annuity. 
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Deposit Rate: 7% 
Matching Ratio (City t o  Employee) 2 to  1 
A member is vested after 5 years 

Members can retire at certain ages, based on the years of service with the City. 
The Service Retirement Eligibilities for the city are: 5 yrslage 60, 20-yrslany age. 

Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determines the City 
contribution rate. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the 
prior service contribution rate, both of which are calculated t o  be a level percent of  
payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently 
accruing monetary credits due to the City matching percent, which are the 
obligation of the City as of an employee's retirement date, not at the time the 
employee's contributions are made. The normal cost contribution rate is the 
actuarially determined percent of  payroll necessary to  satisfy the obligation of the 
City to each employee at the time hislher retirement becomes effective. The prior 
service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability 
(asset) over the remainder of the plan's 25-year amortization period. The unit 
credit actuarial cost method is used for determining the City contribution rate. Both 
the employees and the City make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to  
know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year 
delay between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar 
year when the rate goes into effect. (1.e. December 31, 2004 valuation is effective 
for rate beginning January 2006). 

SCHEDULE OF ACTUARIAL LIABILITIES AND FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/99 12/31/00 12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 1 2/31 104 

Actuarial Value of Assets $ 49,788,030 57,214,578 65,263,038 71,378,360 83,134,944 93,220,964 

Actuarial Accrued Liability 73,328,812 82,609,247 92.1 17,721 100,308,824 143,268,763 159,858,885 

Percentage Funded 67.90% 69.26% 70.65% 71.20% 58.03% 58.31% 
Unfunded Actuarial 

Accrued Liability (UAAL) 23,540,782 25,394,669 26,854,683 28,930,464 60,133.819 66,637,921 
Annual Covered Payroll 45,923,006 48,412,432 52,328,408 53,281,587 57,825,500 59,429,800 

UAAL as a percentage of 

covered Payroll 51.26% 52.45% 51.32% 54.32% 103.90% 112.13% 
Annual Pension Cost: 

Annual Required 

Contribution (ARC1 4,423,989 4,613,519 5,130,883 5,573,578 7,853,449 9,637,803 
Less Contributions Made 

at the end of the period 4,423,989 4.61 3.51 9 5.1 30,863 5,573,578 7,853,449 9,637,803 

Net Pension Obligation $ - - --- 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

Actuarial Cost Method - 
Amortization Method- 
Remaining Amortization Period- 
Asset Valuation Method- 

Investment Rate of Return- 
Projected Salary Increases 
Includes Inflation A t  
Cost-of-Living Adjustments- 

Unit Credit 
Level Percent of Payroll 
25 Years - Open Period 
Amortized Cost (To accurately reflect 
the requirements of the GASB Stmt, 
No. 25, paragraphs 36e and 138) 
7% 
None 
3.5% 
None 

The City of Laredo is one of 801 municipalities having the benefit plan administered 
by TMRS. Each of the 801 municipalities has an annual, individual actuarial 
valuation performed. All assumptions of the December 31, 2004 valuations are 
contained in the 2004 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, a copy of 
which may be obtained by writing to P. 0. Box 1491 53, Austin TX 7871 4-91 53. 

Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System Required Supplemental Information 
Disclosures in Accordance with GASB Statement No. 27 

Actuarial Update as of March 31, 2004 

The Financial Statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

The Board of Trustees of the Laredo Firefighters Retirement System is the 
administrator of a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Laredo 
Firefighters Retirement System is considered part of the City of Laredo financial 
reporting entity and is included in the City's financial reports as a pension trust 
fund. 

The Laredo Firefighters Retirement System covers the firefighters in the Laredo Fire 
Department. The table below summarizes the membership of the System reflected 
in the actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2004, which is performed every two 
years. 

03131 104 
a. Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees 

entitled t o  benefits but not yet receiving them 98 
b. Current Employees: 

i. Vested 5 3  
ii. Nonvested 279 

c. Total 430 
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The Laredo Firefighters Retirement System provides service retirement, death, 
disability, and withdrawal benefits. These benefits vest after 20 years of credited 
service. Employees may retire at age 50 with 20 years of service. The Plan 
effective August 1, 2003 (in effect on the March 31, 2004 valuation date) provides 
a monthly normal service retirement benefit, payable in a Joint and Two-Thirds t o  
Spouse form of annuity. The monthly benefit for firefighters hired prior to January 
1, 1988 is equal to 3.03% of Final Average Monthly Salary for each year of 
service. The monthly benefit for firefighters hired on or after January 1, 1988 is 
equal to 2.88% of Final Average Monthly Salary for each year of service. 
There is no provision for automatic post retirement benefit increases. The System 
has the authority to provide, and has periodically in the past provided for, ad hoc 
post retirement benefit increases. The Texas Local Fire Fighters' Retirement Act 
(TLFFRA) authorizes the benefit provisions of this plan. TLFFRA provides the 
authority and procedure to amend benefit provisions. 

Contributions Required and Contributions Made 

The contribution provisions of this plan are authorized by TLFFRA. TLFFRA 
provides the authority and procedure to change the amount of contributions 
determined as a percentage of pay by each firefighter and a percentage of payroll 
by the city. While the contribution requirements are not actuarially determined, 
state law requires that each plan of benefits adopted by the System must be 
approved by an eligible actuary. The actuary certifies that the contribution 
commitment by the firefighters and the City provides an adequate financing 
arrangement. Using the entry age actuarial cost method the plan's normal cost 
contribution rate is determined as a percentage of payrolls. The excess of the total 
contribution rate over the normal cost contributions rate is used to amortize the 
plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, and the number of years needed to  
amortize the plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is determined using an open, 
level percentage of payroll method. 

The costs of administering the plan are financed from the trust. For the Plan 
effective August 1, 2003, (Plan effective March 31, 2004), the funding policy of 
the Laredo Firefighters Retirement System requires contributions equal to 14% of  
pay by the firefighters. Effective April 1, 2003, required contributions by the City 
of Laredo were 16.02% of pay for each firefighter hired before January 1 ,  1988 
and 14.57% of pay for each firefighter hired on or after January 1 ,  1988. Effective 
April I, 2004. required contributions by the City of Laredo were 17.02% of pay for 
each firefighter hired before January 1 ,  1988 and 15.57% of pay for each 
firefighter hired on or after January 1, 1988. Effective April 1, 2005, the city 
contribution rate will be 17.65% for firefighters hired before January I ,  1988 and 
16.20% for firefighters hired on or after January 1, 1988. 
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Annual Pension Cost 

For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2005, the City of Laredo's annual pension 
cost of $3,235,074 for the Laredo Firefighters Retirement System was equal t o  the 
City's required and actual contributions during the year. While the required 
contributions were not actuarially determined but were a fixed percentage, the plan 
benefits which was most recently amended effective as of August 1 ,2003 has 
been approved by the Board's actuary as having an adequate financing 
arrangement. The fixed city contributions are 16.02% effective April 1,  2003, 
17.02% effective April I,  2004 and 17.65% effective April 1, 2005 for firefighters 
hired before January 1, 1988. For firefighters hired on or after January 1, 1988, 
the fixed percentage is 14.57% effective April 1, 2004, 15.57% effective April 1 ,  
2004 and 16.2% effective April 1,  2005. The required contributions were 
reflected in the March 31, 2004 actuarial valuation, which satisfied the parameters 
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 27. 

The entry age actuarial cost method was used, wi th  the normal cost calculated as a 
level percentage of payroll. The actuarial value is equal t o  the expected actuarial 
value of assets adjusted by  40% of the difference between the actual market value 
and the expected actuarial value. The actuarial value is no t  more than 120% or 
less than 80% of  the actual market value of  assets. The actuarial assumptions 
included an investment return assumption of 7.75% per year (net of expenses), 
projected salary increases averaging 4.5% per year as a general salary increase and 
1.7% per year as a promotion and longevity increase for a total averaging 6.2% per 
year based on 30-year career, and no postretirement cost-of-living adjustments. A n  
inflation assumption of 4% per year is included in the investment return and salary 
increase assumptions. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is amortized 
w i th  the excess of the total contribution rate over the normal cost rate. The 
number of years needed t o  amortize the UAAL is determined using an open, level 
percentage of payroll method; assuming that the payroll wi l l  increase 4.5% per 
year, and was 37 years as of  March 31, 2004 actuarial valuation based on the plan 
provisions effective August 1 ,  2003. 

Trend Information 

Fiscal Year Ending 
09/30/1998 

Annual Pension Cost 
W C I  

$ 1,273,426 
1.41 7,590 
1,584,805 
1,714,980 
2.000.41 1 
2,420,048 
2,787,027 

$ 3,235,074 

Percentage of APC Net Pension 
Contributed Obligation 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
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Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

09130192 
07/31 194 
09/30/95 
0713 1 196 
09130197 
06130198 
03131 100 
03131 102 
0313 1104 

Entry Age UAAL as a 
Actuarial Unfunded AAL Percentage of 

Actuarial Accrued (UAALI Funded Annual Covered Covered 
Value of Liability IAAL) Ib-a1 Ratio lalb) Payroll Ic) Payroll 

Assets la1 Ib) (b-allcl 

$ 15.1 17,781 19,384,831 4,267,050 77.99% 4,999.91 7 85% 
18,694,506 27,137,437 8,442,931 68.89% 6,932,366 122% 
19,843,996 27,545,436 7,701,440 72.04% 6,832,917 113% 
21,565,365 30,936,694 9,371,329 69.71% 8,063,403 116% 
23,768,183 32,196,210 8,428,027 73.82% 8.080.1 70 104% 
27,925,724 38,685,191 10,759,467 72.19% 10,191,336 106% 
32,040,945 48,944,733 16,903,788 65.50% 12,481,680 135% 
35,064,847 66,941.01 6 31.876.1 69 52.40% 16,652,165 191% 

$ 43,720,097 82,210,204 38,490,107 53.18% 18,726,396 205% 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Percentage of Required 
Annual Contribution As a Annual Reauired Contribution Contributed 

Plan Year Ended Percentage of Payroll Contribution 
0913011 996 14.02% & 12.5736 $ 1,033,636 100% 

A copy of the financial and pension plan report may be obtained by writing to: 
Laredo Firefighters Retirement System, 521 9 Tesoro Plaza, Laredo, TX 78041. 

NOTE 10 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS 

In addition to the pension benefits, the City provides postretirement health care 
benefits in accordance with State statutes to all employees who retire from the City 
at age 60  and above with 5 years or more of service or with 20 or more years of  
service regardless of age. Currently, 1 16 retirees meet those eligibility 
requirements. The City reimburses 80% of the amount of  validated claims for 
medical and hospitalization costs incurred by pre-Medicare retirees and their 
dependants. Expenditures for postretirement health care benefits are recognized as 
retirees report claims and include a provision for estimated claims incurred but not 
yet reported to the City. During the year, expenditures of approximately $433,434 
were recognized for postretirement health benefits of which $85,580 was received 
from the firemen's contribution. 
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NOTE 11 - GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a summary of changes in the city's general long-term obligations 
for the year ended September 30, 2005. 

General Certificates Captial 
Obligation of Revenue Compensated Lease Notes 

Serial Bonds Obligation Bonds Absences Obligations Payable 
Long Term Liabilities: 
Beginning Balances $ 67,120,000 71,610,000 37,735,000 760,642 1,190,000 
Additions 24,455,000 15,625,000 33,550,000 1,524,977 
Retirements (1 1,535,000) (28,305,000) (35,080,000) - (1,255,751) (85,000) 
Ending Balances 80,040,000 58,930,000 36,205,000 1,029,868 1.1 05,000 

Current Liabilities: 
Due Wlthin One Year 8,000,000 6,755,000 930,000 40,453 930,751 85,000 
Total Liabilities $ 88,040,000 65,685,000 37.1 35,000 40,453 1,960,619 1,190,000 

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund. 

Bonds payable as of September 30, 2005 are comprised of the following issues: 

A - General Obligation Serial Bonds 

$30,080,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1996 issued to reduce the 
overall debt service requirements of the City. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through year 201 1 with interest varying between 3.7% and 5.25 % per annurn. $ 21,320,000 

$5,830,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1997 issued for the purpose of 
constructing and permanently equipping three fire stations; constructing, and installing 
and equipping a fire training tower and training facility, and other matters relating 
thereto. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2017 with interest varying from 
4.75% to 7.75% per annum. 825,000 

$43,050,000 1998 General Obligation Refunding Bonds issued for the purpose of 
refunding a portion of the City's outstanding tax supported debt in order t o  lower the 
overall debt service requirements of the City, and to pay cost of issuance of the 
Bonds. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2015 with interest varying from 
4.00% to 5.125% per annum. 39,305,000 

$4,590,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 issued t o  reduce the 
overall debt service requirements of the city. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2010 with interest varying from 2.00% to 3.00% interest per annum. 2.1 35,000 

$24,455,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 issued for the 
purpose of refunding outstanding obligations in order to achieve a debt service savings 
and pay cost related t o  the issuance of the bonds. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2021 with interest varying from 3.50% to 5.00% interest per annum. 24,455,000 

Total General Obligation Bonds $ 88.040.000 
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B - Certificates of Obligation 

$1,000,000 1992 Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Certificate of Obligation 
issued for the purpose of making airport improvements. Principal is due in varying 
amounts through 2013, wi th interest varying from 4.85% to 6.60% per annum. S 535,000 

$2,040,000 1996 Combination Tax and Airport Revenues Certificates of Obliga-tion 
issued for the purpose of acquiring land for the Laredo Municipal Airport. Principal is 
due on varying amounts through year 201 1, with interest rates varying from 4.4% to 
6% per annum. 1,010,000 

$2,860,000 Combination Tax and Waterworks System Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 1997-A, issued for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the 
City's contractual obligations for improvements and extension to the City's 
Waterworks system, and for the payment of legal, fiscal, and engineering fees in 
connection with this project. Principal is due in varying amounts though 2017 with 405,000 
interest varying from 4.75% to 6.75% per annum. 

$3,660,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 1997-8, 
issued for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the city's contractual obligations 
for the acquisition of trucks and related fire equipment; acquisition of equipment and 
improvement at the new main library; purchase of material recycling facility from 
Southern Sanitation Services, Inc.; and for the payment of legal, fiscal, architectural 
and engineering fees in connection with such projects. Principal is due in varying 
amounts through 2007 wi th interest varying from 4.25% to 7.25% per annum. 370,000 

$1,430,000 1998 Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Certificates of Obligation, 
for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations for the 
purpose of acquiring land at the municipal airport in connection with the settlement of 
a lawsuit in reference to noise abatement at the City's Airport and for the payment of 
legal and fiscal fees in connection with this project. Principal is due in varying 
amounts through 2018 wi th interest from 4.60% t o  7.00% per annum. 1,090,000 

$6,415,000 1998-A Combination Tax and Sewer Revenue Certificates of Obligations 
issued for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations 
for improvements and extensions to the City's Sewer System, and acquisition of land 
in connection therewith, and for the payment of legal, fiscal, and engineering fees in 
connection with this projects. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2018 with 
interest from 4.400% to 7.375% per annum. 2,055,000 

$16,160,000 1998-6 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation for the 
purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations for the 
construction of drainage improvements; construction of street improvements and 
repairs; construction of a new Public Works Building, repairing and remodeling the 
Canizalez Gym, Old Library Building, and Municipal Court Building; acquisition of 
municipal vehicles and equipment for municipal departments, together wi th a Landfill 
Collection System, and the acquisition of land for a municipal landfill, and for the 
payment of legal, fiscal, architectural and engineering fees in connection with such 
projects. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2018 with interest from 4.40% 
to 7.25% per annum. $ 3,585,000 
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$1,050,000 1999 Combination Tax and Parking System Certificates of Obligation 
issued for the purpose of purchasing land for a parking lot and t o  pay costs of 
issuance. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2014, with interest varying 
between 3.75% through 5.20% per annum. $ 

$3,850,000 1999 Combination Tax and Waterworks System Certificates of 
Obligation issued for the purpose of expanding and improving the Waterworks System 
and to pay costs of issuance. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2019 with 
interest varying between 3.70% through 5.35% per annum. 

$2,830,000 1999 Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds issued for 
the purpose of refunding a portion of the City's current outstanding indebtedness. 
Principal is due in varying amounts through 2014 with interest varying between 
4.25% through 5.40% per annum. 

$2,060,000 2000 Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Refunding Bond issued for 
the purpose of refunding the Airport Indenture Obligation for release of land from 
indenture, and ordaining other matters relating thereto. Principal is due in varying 
amounts through 2020 with interest from 5.10% to 7.00% per annum. 

$1,820,000 2000 Combination Tax and Sewer System Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual 
Obligations for the purposes of improving and extending the City's Sewer System, 
and the payment of legal and fiscal fees in connection with this project. Principal is 
due in varying amounts through 2020 with interest from 5.10% to 7.00% per 
annum. 

$2,485,000 2000 Combination Tax and Waterworks System Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual 
Obligations for the purpose of improving and extending the City's Waterworks 
System, and for the payment of legal and fiscal fees in connection with this project, 
and other matters relating thereto in connection with this project. Principal is due in 
varying amounts through 2020 with interest from 5.00% to 7.00% per annum. 

$9,365,000 2000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation issued for 
the purpose of constructing a new Municipal Court, constructing and improving the 
City's streets, the acquisition, design, and construction of the Inner City Park, and 
issuance expenses. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2021 wi th interest 
varying from 5.25% t o  5.375% per annurn. 

$1,550,000 2000A Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations for the purpose 
of purchasing automotive equipment, trucks, fire engine, ambulance, sweepers, 
mowers, street equipment, computers, and issuance costs. Principal is due in varying 
amounts through 2006 wi th interest varying from 4.55% through 5.50% per annum. 

$9,925,000 2002 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation issued for 
the purpose of acquiring downtown properties, a property known as Slaughter Farm, 
acquisition of land in northeast Laredo and land for the Fire Training and Law 
Enforcement Facility. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2022 wi th interest 
varying from 3.25% to 5.00% per annum. $ 
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$2,265,000 2002 Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations issued for the 
purpose of paying all or a portion of the issuer's contractual obligations to be incurred 
in connection with the acquisition or purchase of personal property. Principal is due in 
varying amounts through 2007 wi th interest varying from 2.0% t o  2.9% per annum. $ 940,000 

$3,620,000 Combination Tax and Sewer System Revenue Certificates of Obligation, 
Series 2003 issued for the purpose of paying all or portion of the City's Contractual 
obligations for constructing, improving, and extending the City's Sewer System, and 
for the payment of legal, fiscal, and engineering fees in connection with this project. 
Principal is due in varying amounts through 2023, with interest varying from 3.40% 
to 4.50% per annum. 3,385,000 

$2,795,000 Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2003 issued for 
the purpose of purchasing vehicle equipment, trucks, cars, trailers, fire department 
equipment, EMS equipment, boat ramps, sweepers, mowers, projector, studio lights, 
generators, testing equipment for toll system, street equipment, computers, related 
hardware and software, paint remover equipment, statement sorter, power sweepers, 
and issuance costs. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2008 wi th interest 
varying from 1.70% to 3.00% per annum. 1,740,000 

$3,510,000 Combination Tax and Waterworks System Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2003 for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's 
contractual obligations for the purpose of constructing drainage improvements, 
including pilot channel, constructing and equipping a fire station, for the payment of 
legal, fiscal, architectural and engineering fees in connection with this. Principal is 
due in varying amounts through 2023 with interest from 3.40% to 4.50% per 
annum. 3,420,000 

$13,535,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2004 
for to purpose of paying street, parking, and landfill improvements, including costs of 
issuance. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2024 with interest from 3% to 
5% per annum. 12,250,000 

$15,625,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2005 
for the purpose of purchasing vehicles, and equipment for the Fire Department, 
purchasing vehicles for the Planning, Building and Public Works Department, 
acquiring and constructing a City communication system, making improvements to 
the City Health Clinic, acquiring land and equipment for and making improvements to 
municipal parks, acquiring land and preliminary design for various drainage projects, 
and for the payment of legal, fiscal, and engineering fees in connection with such 
projects; and paying the costs related to the issuance of the certificates. Principal is 
due in varying amounts through 2025 with interest from 3 %  to 5 %  per annum. 15,625,000 

Total Certificates of Obligation $ 65,685,000 

The applicable bond ordinances for the aforementioned debt contain limitations and 
restrictions on annual debt service requirements and maintenance of and f low of  
monies through various restricted accounts as well as minimum amounts to  be 
maintained in various sinking funds. 
The City is in compliance w i th  all significant limitations and restrictions. 
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C - Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

The City's Sales Tax Revenue Bonds are special obligations of the City and are 
collateralized by revenue from a ?h of 1 % sales and use tax collected within the 
City's boundaries. Sales Tax Revenue Bonds as of September 30, 2005 consist of 
the following: 

$39,315,000 2001 Sports Venue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds issued for the purpose of 
to financing a multipurpose sports and entertainment arena and related infrastructure, 
and issuance costs. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2018 with interest 
from 3.95% to 5.75% per annum. $ 3,585,000 

$33,550,000 2005 Sports Venue Sales Tax Revenue Improvement and Refunding 
Bonds issued for the purpose of acquiring and constructing additional parking for the 
multipurpose entertainment arena and refunding a portion of the City's outstanding 
Sports Venue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 in order to achieve a debt service 
savings and to pay costs related to the issuance of the bonds. Principal is due in 
varying amounts through 2024 wi th interest from 3.00% to 5.00% per annum. 33,550,000 

Total Sales Tax Revenue Bonds $ 37,135,000 

D - Capital Lease Obligations 

The City has entered into several lease-purchase agreements for various pieces of 
equipment. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting 
purposes (titles transfer at the end of the lease terms) and, therefore, have been 
recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date 
of their inception. 

General Fund 

$1,413,240 Ford Motor Credit Company for the purchase of sixty law enforcement 
vehicles for the Police Department. Payments are due in annual installments of 
$250,000 for the first year and $423,554.78 for the remaining years including principal $ 
and interest through April 2006. lnterest is at 4.55% per annum. 

$772,219 Ford Motor Credit Company for the purchase of thirty seven law enforcement 
vehicles for the Police Department. Payments are due in annual installments o f  
$250,000 for the first year and $189,468.03 for the remaining years including principal 
and interest through February 2007. lnterest is at 4.36% per annum. 

$1,123,300 Philpott Motors for the purchase of forty seven law enforcement for the 
Police Department. Payments are due in annual installments of $325,000 for the first 
year and $284,940.56 for the remaining years including principal and interest through 
November 2007. lnterest is at 3.5% per annum. 
$401,677 Motorola Corporation and Portable Computer Systems for the purchase o f  
forty seven Mobile Data Terminals for the Police Department. Payments are due in 
annual installments of $ 1  10,527.81 including principal and interest through January 
2009. lnterest is at 3.950% per annum. 
Total Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments $ 
Plus Amount Representing Interest 
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 2.099.424 
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The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Asset: 
Automotive Equipment $ 3,710,437 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,841,414) 
Total $ 1.869.023 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum 
lease payments as of September 30, 2005, are as follows: 

Governmental 
Year Ending Sep. 30 Activities 

2006 $ 1,008,491 
2007 584,937 
2008 395,468 
2009 1 10,528 
Total minimum lease payments 2,099,424 
Less: amount representing interest (1 38,805) 
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,960.61 9 

Capital leases wil l  be paid within the next three years, therefore only data for those 
years is shown. 

E - Notes Payable 

Section 108 Loan $1,700,000 Chase Manhattan Bank through HUD 108 
Program for the restoration of the Hamilton Hotel into a 165 low and moderate 
income residential units. Principal is due annually with a variable interest rate 
between 6.2013% and 6.4050%. $ 1.1 90.000 

NOTE 12 - PROPRIETARY FUNDS LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the City's 
Proprietary Funds for the year ended September 30, 2005: 

Revenue Note Compensated 
Bonds Payable Landfill Absences 

Cost 
Long Term Liabilities: 
Beginning Balances $ 66,320,273 34,261,023 6.21 5,053 659.166 

Additions 53,227,401 1,295,256 654,841 21 2,876 
Amortization of Deferred Charges 294,029 (76,192) 
Retirements (29,357,000) (10,661,6621 (1 23.481) 

Ending Balances 90,484,703 24,818,425 6,869,894 748.561 

Current Liabilities: 
Due Within One Year 
Total Liabilities 
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A - Bonds 

$1,700,000 1991 Subordinate Sewer Revenue Bonds with principal due in 
varying amounts through 201 1, including interest at 5.5% per annum. $ 610,000 

$17,995,000 1996 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bonds 
with principal due in varying amounts through year 2010, including interest at 
4.00% to 5.70% per annum. 5,280,000 

$9,000,000 1999 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Bond with principal 
due in varying amounts through year 2019, including interest at 3.7% to 5.4% 
per annum. 1,215,000 

$12,105,000 2002 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Bond with 
principal due in varying amounts through year 2022, including interest at 4.0% 
to 5.0%. 10,385,000 

$2,095,000 2002A Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bond with principal due 
in varying amounts through year 201 1, including interest at 2.0% to 3.75%. 885,000 

$2,620,000 20028 Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bond with principal due 
in varying amounts through year 201 1, including interest at 1.85% to 4.95%. 1,205,000 

$741,000 2002 Waterworks System Revenue Bond with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 2024, including interest at 3.3% to 5.9 % 694,000 

$710,000 2002 Sewer System Revenue Bond with principal due in varying 
amounts through year 2024, including interest at 3.3% to 5.9%. 665,000 

$5,935,000 2004 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Bond with principal 
due in varying amounts through year 2024, including interest at 2.3% to 6.0% 5,575,000 

$7,480,000 2004 Waterworks & Sewer Systems Revenue with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 2024, including interest at 3.0% to 5.0% 7,040,000 

$6.21 5,000 2004 Waterworks Revenue Refunding Bonds with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 2010, including interest at 2.0% to 4.65% 4,405,000 

$23,760,000 2005A lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Improvement 
and Refunding Bond with principal due in varying amounts through year 2025, 
including interest at 3.0% to 5.0% 22,995,000 

$24,565,000 20058 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bond 
with principal due in varying amounts through year 2019, including interest at 
4.0% to 5.0% 24,565,000 

$6,420,000 2005 Waterworks & Sewer Systems Revenue with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 2025, including interest at 3.0% to 4.4% 6,240,000 
Subtotal 91,759,000 
Deferred Charges for Various Revenue Refunding Bonds (1,274,297) 
Total Revenue Bonds $ 90,484,703 
Due Within One Year $ 5,267.000 
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The applicable bond ordinances for the aforementioned debt contain limitations and 
restrictions on annual debt service requirements and maintenance of and flow of 
monies through various restricted accounts as well as minimum amounts to be 
maintained in various sinking funds. The City is in compliance with all significant 
limitations and restrictions. 

B - Notes Payable 

Texas Department of Transportation - State Infrastructure Bank loan for 
$27,000,000 for the design and construction of bridge facilities and a portion of 
the costs of constructing the highway improvements. The City of Laredo 
received $1 9,500,000 of the loan proceeds in fiscal year 1998 and $9,806,858 
in fiscal year 1999. lnterest rate on the note is 4.10% simple interest per 
annum, lnterest is deferred for seven years and added t o  the principal 
outstanding balance. The note has a final maturity date of October 1, 2027. $ 23,599,360 

Deferred Gain on Refunding Note 1.21 9,065 

Total 24.81 8,425 
Due Within One Year $ 701,378 - 

C - Compensated Absences 

The long-term portion of compensated absences for all City employees for 
Proprietary funds is comprised of the following: 

Fund Amount 
Transit System $ 69,202 

D - Refu 

Bridge System 
Municipal Housing 
Waterworks System 
Sewer System 
Solid Waste Fund 
Total 

~nding and Early Extinguishmen 

1. International Toll Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2005A 

On July 1, 2005, the City of Laredo issued $1 1,355,000 in International Toll 
Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bond, Taxable Series 2005A with an average 
interest rate of 4.88% to advance refund the following: 

Average Principal Amount 
Bond Issue Interest Rate Refunded 

SIB Loans, Series 1998 [Series B-Dl 
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The net proceeds of $1 1,896,144 (after payment of $304,497 in underwriting 
fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) plus an additional cash contribution of 
$333,045 for the 1998 B-D Series bonds sinking funds monies were used to 
purchase US .  government securities. Those securities were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service 
payments on the 1998 B-D Series bonds. As a result, the 1998 B-D Series bonds 
are considered to  be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed. 

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and 
the net carrying amount of the old debt of $1 2,265,096. This difference, reported 
in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is 
being charged to  operations through the year 2026 using the effective-interest 
method. The agency completed the advance refunding and its total debt service 
payments increase over the next twenty one years by $5,898,948 and resulted in 
an economic loss (difference between the present value of the old and the new 
debt service payments) of $391,746. 

2. International Toll Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2005B 

On August 15, 2005, the City of Laredo issued $24,565,000 in International Toll 
Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bond, Taxable Series 20058 with an average 
interest rate of 4.75% to advance refund the following: 

Average Principal 
Bond Issue Interest Rate Amount 

Refunded 

Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A 4.847% $ 19,175,000 
Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1999 5.240% 5,680,000 

Total $ 24,855,000 

The net proceeds of $25,744,801 (after payment of $578,989 in underwriting 
fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) plus an additional cash contribution of 
$608,138 for the 1998A and 1999 Series bonds sinking funds monies were used 
to purchase U S .  government securities. Those securities were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service 
payments on the 1998A and 1999 Series bonds. As a result, the 1998A and 1999 
Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has 
been removed. 

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and 
the net carrying amount of the old debt of $37,544,065. This difference, reported 
in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is 
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being charged to operations through the year 2020 using the effective-interest 
method. The agency completed the advance refunding and its total debt service 
payments decrease over the next fifteen years by $1,548,515 and resulted in an 
economic gain (difference between the present value of the old and the new debt 
service payments) of $829,756. 

E - Prior-year defeasance of debt. 

In prior years, the City defeased certain revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of 
new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on 
the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability of the defeased 
bonds are not included in the City's financial statements. 

As of September 30, 2005, $41.909 million in bonds outstanding are considered 
defeased. 

F - Landfill Closure and Post Closure Costs 

During fiscal year 1994, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.18 
"Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post Closure Care 
Costs." The landfill closure and post closure costs and the liability for landfill 
closure and post closure costs in Solid Waste Fund as of September 30, 2005 is 
$1 2,830.21 8 of which $6,869,894 has been recognized and recorded as a liability 
based on the Municipal Solid Waste Landfill use. 

Federal and State laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its 
landfill when it stops accepting waste and perform certain maintenance and 
monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. In addition to  
operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill, a liability is being 
recognized based on future closure and post closure care costs that will be incurred 
near or after the date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these 
landfill closure and post closure care costs is based on the capacity of the landfill 
used to date. 

The liability for landfill closure and post closure care costs of $6,869,894 as of  
September 30, 2005 represents the cumulative amount for 109.3 acres of  the 
landfill filled with solid waste for closure and 200 acres for post-closure care. The 
percentage of the landfill capacity for solid waste used as of September 30, 2005 
is 54%. With Landfill receiving a permit for vertical expansion the estimated 
remaining life of the landfill is 8 112 years. Based on the remaining life, the landfill 
will be filled to capacity by the year 201 3. The estimated total current cost of the 
landfill closure and post closure care ($12,830,218) is based on the amount that 
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would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to  close, monitor, 
and maintain the landfill were acquired as of September 30, 2005. However, the 
actual costs of closure and post closure care may be higher due t o  inflation, 
changes in technology, or changes in solid waste management laws and 
regulations. 

The landfill is divided into four phases and is further divided into cells of 3 to 7 
acres. The new regulations require that liner systems be installed in all cells opened 
after July 1, 1994. All cells regardless of their age will be required to receive final 
cover in conformity with the specifications of the current laws. 

Federal and State laws and regulations require the City of Laredo to make annual 
financial assurances regarding the financing of closure and post closure care. The 
City is in compliance with this requirement. It is anticipated that future inflation 
costs will be financed in part from earnings on investments and by a federal 
mandate fee of $4.25 charged monthly to all garbage users. Commercial accounts, 
formerly exempt from the fee, are now charged the federal mandate fee. The 
remaining portion of anticipated future inflation costs and additional costs that 
might arise from changes in post closure requirements (for example, changes in 
technology or more rigorous environmental regulations) may need to  be covered by 
charges to future landfill users, taxpayers, or both. 

NOTE 13 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The purposes of interfund balances are to provide cash flows for grants and t o  
cover funds with negative cash. lnterfund receivables and payables as of  
September 30, 2005 are as follows: 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Receivables Payables 

General Fund 
Nonmajor Governmental 
Major Business Type Funds: 
Bridge System 
Sewer System 
Non-Major Business Type Funds: 
Transit 
Fiduciary Funds: 
Police Health and Benefits . - 

Firefighters Retirement System Pension Trust Fund 92 
Total $ 1,965,936 $ 1,965,936 
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